
 1

 
BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

JULY 12-13, 2007 
 

FRONT STREET LEARNING CENTER 
815 FRONT STREET 

HELENA, MT  
 

July 12, 2007 - Thursday 
8:30 a.m.     
 
CALL TO ORDER 

a. Pledge of Allegiance  
b. Roll Call 
c. Statement of Public Participation 
d. Welcome Visitors 
e. Adopt Agenda 

    
PUBLIC COMMENT 

CONSENT AGENDA 
a. BPE Finance   
b. Approve May 10-11, 2007 Meeting Minutes 
c. Approve June 13, 2007 Conference Call Meeting Minutes 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

 REPORTS – Patty Myers (Items 1 – 2) 
    
Item 1   CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT       
   Patty Myers 
   Board Member Appearances 
        
Item 2   EXECUTIVE SECRETARY’S REPORT    
   Steve Meloy 
 

 CSPAC LIAISON -  Angela McLean (Item 3) 
 
Item 3   CSPAC REPORT 
   Peter Donovan  
 

 REPORTS – Patty Myers (Items 4 – 7) 
 
Item 4   STATE SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT  
   INDIAN EDUCATION FOR ALL REPORT    
   State Superintendent Linda McCulloch 
    
Item 5   COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION’S REPORT   
   Commissioner Sheila Stearns  
 
Item 6   GOVERNOR’S OFFICE REPORT 
   Jan Lombardi 
 
Item 7   STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT 
   Jenny Tiskus 
   Katie Wood (Introduction) 
 



 2

 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Patty Myers (Item 8) 
 
Item 8   BPE’S STRATEGIC PLANNING UPDATE 
   Steve Meloy 
 

 ASSESSMENT TASK FORCE – Sharon Carroll (Items 9-11) 
 
Item 9   ANNUAL GED REPORT 
   David Strong 
 
Item 10   ASSESSMENT REPORT  
   Nancy Coopersmith 
 
Item 11   ANNUAL SPECIAL EDUCATION REPORT 
   Bob Runkel 
 

 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – Storrs Bishop (Item 12) 
 
Item 12   HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 
   John Fuller 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Angela McLean (Item 13) 
 
Item 13   REPORT OF SURRENDERS (3) 
   Cathy Warhank 
 

 GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE – Dr. Kirk Miller (Item 14) 
 
Item 14   NO CHILD LEFT BEHIND REPORT 
   Nancy Coopersmith 
 

 MSDB LIAISON – Patty Myers (Item 15) 
    
Item 15   MSDB COMMITTEE MEETING REPORT 
   Steve Gettel 
 
************************************************************************************************************************
* 
 
July 13, 2007 – Friday 
8:30 a.m.   
 
INFORMATION ITEM 

 
 GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE – Dr. Kirk Miller (Item 16) 

 
Item 16   INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND STATE CONNECTIVITY 
   Dick Clark, Chief Information Officer 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
The public will be afforded the opportunity to comment before the Board on every action item on 
the agenda prior to final Board action. 
 
ACTION ITEMS  
 



 3

 
 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – Storrs Bishop (Items 17-18 ) 

 
Item 17  ACCREDITATION UPDATE – ADDENDUM TO THE 2006-07 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
  Al McMilin 
 
Item 18  ALTERNATIVE TO STANDARDS REQUEST 
  Al McMilin 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Angela McLean (Items 19-22)  
 
Item 19  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE ELEMENTARY EDUCATION PROGRAM  
  PROPOSED BY SALISH KOOTENAI COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL  
  EDUCATION UNIT 
  Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson and Cindy O’Dell 
 
Item 20  REQUEST TO PROCEED ON ACADEMIC DENIAL OF LICENSE 
  Cathy Warhank 
 
Item 21  TEACHER LICENSURE  

•   ANGELA HELVEY – Steve Meloy 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Item 22  REVOCATION(S) OF LICENSES (3) 
  Cathy Warhank 
 
 
PRELIMINARY AGENDA ITEMS BPE MEETING– SEPTEMBER 13-14, 2007 
Set Annual Agenda Calendar 
Election of Board Officers 
Committee Appointments 
Superintendent Goals 
BPE Goal Review 
Assessment Update 
NCLB Update 
MACIE Update 
 
 
 
 





























 

 1

 
BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

MAY 10-11, 2007 
 

MONTANA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF AND BLIND 
3911 CENTRAL AVENUE 
GREAT FALLS, MT 59401 

 
May 10, 2007 - Thursday 
8:30 a.m.     
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairperson Patty Myers called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. on Thursday, May 10, 2007.  The 
Pledge of Allegiance was led by the Montana School for the Deaf and Blind Pre-school students and 
Lewis and Clark Elementary 2nd Grade students.  Ms. Patty Myers made introductions of those who assist 
her in the classroom with the Lewis and Clark Elementary 2nd Grade students and the pre-school 
instructor for the Deaf and Blind students. Ms. Carol Will took roll call; a quorum was noted.   Ms. Patty 
Myers requested for indulgence of flexibility with the agenda. 
 

MOTION:  Ms. Angela McLean moved to accept the agenda with flexibility.  Mr. Storrs 
Bishop seconded. Motion passed unanimously.  Dr. Kirk Miller absent for the vote. 

 
Those in attendance at the meeting included the following Board members:  Chairperson Ms. Patty 
Myers, Vice Chairperson Ms. Angela McLean, Mr. Storrs Bishop, Mr. John Fuller, Dr. Kirk Miller, Mr. Cal 
Gilbert, Ms. Sharon Carroll, and Ms. Jenny Tiskus.  Staff present at the meeting included Mr. Steve 
Meloy, Executive Secretary of the Board of Public Education; Mr. Peter Donovan, Administrative Officer, 
Certification Standards and Practices Advisory Council; and Ms. Carol Will, Administrative Assistant, 
Board of Public Education.  Ms. Nancy Coopersmith, OPI Assistant Superintendent, represented ex-
officio Board Member Ms. Linda McCulloch, State Superintendent.  Visitors in attendance at the meeting 
included:  Mr. Eric Feaver, MEA-MFT; Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson, OPI Accreditation Division 
Administrator; Ms. Elizabeth Keller, OPI Educator Licensure Unit Manager; Mr. Al McMilin, OPI 
Accreditation Specialist; Ms.Cathy Warhank, OPI Legal Counsel; Mr. Doug Rhuman, Salish Kootenai 
College; Ms. Amy Burland, Salish Kootenai College; Ms. Cindy O’Dell, Salish Kootenai College; Ms. Beck 
McLaughlin, Arts Council; Ms. Patricia Chlouber, United States Department of Education; Ms. Judith 
Gossnell-Lamb, BSSNC; Ms. Barbara Mansfield, Whitefish High School; Mr. Dan Zorn, Superintendent of 
Kalispell Public Schools;  Mr. Bob Johnke, MSU-Northern; Mr. Charles Pollington, MSU-Northern; Mr. 
Ron Peebles, parent; Ms. Patricia Peebles, parent; Mr. Brian Patrick, Townsend Public Schools; Mr. Tom 
Kotynski, Great Falls Public Schools; Mr. Ryan Schrenk, Director of Distance Learning, MSU-Great Falls; 
Ms. Judy Hay, Assistant Dean, MSU-Great Falls; Mr. Larry Crowder, Culbertson Public Schools; Ms. 
Cindy Luoma, Fairfield Public Schools; Mr. Les Meyer, Fairfield Public Schools; Dr. Mary Sheehy Moe, 
Dean, MSU-Great Falls; and Ms. Nancy Gede, teacher.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Mr. Steve Meloy addressed the revenue that has been brought to the Board of Public Education from the 
MetLife Grant that the BPE’s Student Representative Jenny Tiskus received on behalf of the Board to 
enhance peer communication for student leaders. 
 

MOTION:  Mr. Storrs Bishop moved to accept the consent agenda.  Ms. Angela McLean 
seconded.  Motion passed unanimously.  Dr. Kirk Miller absent for the vote. 

 
 



 

 2

Items are presented in the order in which they appeared. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
    
Item 1 CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT-Patty Myers 
• 3-20-2007 Testimony before Senate Finance Committee 
• 4-4-2007 Conference call BPE meeting 
• 4-18-2007 Spring Program MSDB 
• 4-20-2007 Met with Mr. Steve Gettel concerning the future direction of MSDB 
• 4-21-2007 Attended Expressions of Silence performance at MSDB 
• 4-27-2007 Testimony on behalf of the National Education Association before the U.S. Senate           

                    Committee on Finance, published in the Congressional Quarterly Researcher. 
 
Ms. Patty Myers conducted the vote of the Montana Board of Public Education for the 2008 National 
Association of State Boards of Education Board of Directors election.  Information was provided for the 
following candidates:  President-elect, Mr. Kenneth Willard-Kansas; Secretary-Treasurer, Mr. Greg Haws-
Utah; and Western Area Director, Mr. Randy DeHoff-Colorado.   
   

MOTION:  Mr. Storrs Bishop moved that the Board of Public Education cast their vote for 
the 2008 NASBE Board of Directors candidates listed on the ballot.  Ms. Sharon Carroll 
seconded.  Motion passed unanimously.  Dr. Kirk Miller absent for the vote.    

 
BOARD MEMBER APPEARANCES 
 Sharon Carroll 

• 5-9-2007 Western Governors University Scholarship Meeting 
        
Item 2  EXECUTIVE SECRETARY’S REPORT-Steve Meloy 
Mr. Steve Meloy stated that all pieces of legislation having an adverse effect on the Board have died.  
Other issues addressed were: Budget process for the 2009 biennium; appointed program chair for the 
National Council of State Board of Education Executives (NCSBEE); responded to a request for 
recommendations for a bullying policy; attended and observed most hearings involving funding and major 
amendments to educational governance; comments from the field on the future of the NRT and 
amendments to the BPE distance learning rule; and attended all Ed Forum meetings.  In addition, Mr. 
Steve Meloy addressed the request that the Superintendent of Public Instruction received from the 
Associated Press under the Montana Open Records Law for information regarding the number of 
teachers who lost their educator licenses due to misconduct.  The request was also for the names and 
previous districts of employment for those who lost a license due to sexual misconduct.  The Associated 
Press’s request and the Montana Office of Public Instruction’s response to open records were placed 
under the correspondence section of this agenda packet. 
 
Item 3 CSPAC REPORT-Peter Donovan 
Mr. Peter Donovan distributed the conference agenda for the NASDTEC Conference and the NASDTEC 
Interstate Mobility Study Project Overview.  Learning Point Associates is working with NASDTEC to 
identify promising policies and practices that facilitate teacher mobility across state lines as well as 
barriers that prevent teachers from easily transferring their teaching licenses from one state to another.    
 
CSPAC APPOINTMENTS (ACTION) 
Dr. Douglas Reisig, Superintendent, Hellgate Elementary School, and Ms. Tonia Bloom, Trustee, 
Corvallis School District submitted letters of re-appointment to the Montana Certification Standards and 
Practices Advisory Council. 
  

 
 
 



 

 3

MOTION:  Ms. Angela McLean moved to re-appoint Dr. Douglas Reisig and Ms. Tonia 
Bloom to the Montana Certification Standards and Practice Advisory Council.  Mr. John 
Fuller seconded.  Motion passed unanimously.  Dr. Kirk Miller absent for the vote. 

   
Item 4 STATE SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT-State Superintendent Linda McCulloch  
Ms. Nancy Coopersmith, Assistant Superintendent presented Superintendent Linda McCulloch’s report to 
the Board.  Topics addressed were:  Achievement in Montana (AIM); electronic grants management 
system (E-grants); outstanding educator requests; 2007 OPI Assessment Conference; CRT science field 
tests; hiring and licensure tips; AIM data collections; and the 2007 youth risk behavior survey.  Ms. Patty 
Myers asked Ms. Nancy Coopersmith to follow-up with the change in the Board of Education bylaws 
reflecting when the Board of Education meetings will be held.  
 
INDIAN EDUCATION FOR ALL REPORT 
OPI has completed the following for Indian Education for All:  Made Indian Education for All materials 
more accessible by close captioning selected materials; made “Montana Indians:  Their History and 
Location and Connecting Cultures and Classrooms K-12 Curriculum Guide” available in Braille; sent five 
different reference books to every K-12 school library to ensure that every public school has a common 
core set of Indian Education for All (IEFA) materials to start the 2007-2008 school year; sent additional 
DVDs to all school library media centers; partnered with the Montana Historical Society to support the 
development of an 8th grade Montana History textbook that will be published in January of 2008; provided 
a two-day institute in May on the implementation of IEFA hosted by MSU’s School of Education to bring 
together representatives from all the university and tribal college teacher training programs; and hosted 
an Indian Education for All Best Practices conference in Bozeman May 6-8, 2007. 
    
Item 5 COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION’S REPORT-Commissioner Sheila Stearns 
No report presented.  
 
Item 6 GOVERNOR’S OFFICE REPORT-Jan Lombardi 
No report presented. 
 
Item 7 STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT-Jenny Tiskus 
Ms. Jenny Tiskus presented the following information in regard to the NASBE grant:  Radio spots started 
May 2, 2007; letters to all schools; survey fully online at the Office of Public Instruction’s website and 
linked to from the Board of Public Education’s website; and new steps to engage more student 
responses.  Included in her report was the press release distributed by the Board of Public Education, the 
press release distributed by NASBE, a copy of the radio broadcast, and a copy of the student opinion 
survey.  There was follow-up discussion by the Board to provide Ms. Jenny Tiskus with additional ideas to 
engage more student responses to the student opinion survey. 
 
Item 8  MACIE REPORT-Norma Bixby 
Mr. Cal Gilbert presented the MACIE report.  A summary of the April 2007 MACIE meeting was presented 
as follows:  Update on legislative action, curriculum materials, tribal history projects, and MACIE goals.  
MACIE recommended that OPI and BPE consider an appointment of an early childhood representative to 
MACIE.   
 
10:15 Break – Expressions of Silence video presented during break 
 
Item 9  INITIAL ACCREDITATION OF ELEMENTARY EDUCATION PROGRAM PROPOSED BY 
SALISH KOOTENAI COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION UNIT-Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson, 
OPI; Cindy O’Dell, Chairwoman, Department of Education, Salish Kootenai College; and Audrey 
Peterson, Team Chair of the On-site Review Team 
Dr. Audrey Peterson was not able to attend this meeting.  Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson, Ms. Cindy O’Dell, 
Ms. Amy Burland, and Mr. Doug Rhuman presented the request for initial accreditation for Salish 
Kootenai College.  On April 10-12, 2007 the Office of Public Instruction conducted an on-site review of 
the elementary education program at Salish Kootenai College.  Dr. Audrey Peterson served as team 



 

 4

chair.  Salish Kootenai College requests initial accreditation for its Elementary Education endorsement 
program. Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson provided an overview of the on-site visit. Ms. Cindy O’Dell 
discussed a variety of methods being used to ensure the success of their graduates in communication 
and writing skills.  The college wants student educators to succeed and will support them to become 
highly qualified teachers.   The final report will be presented to the Board at the July 2007 meeting for 
action. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 16  BASE AID PAYMENT SCHEDULE-Nancy Coopersmith 
As required by 20-9-344, MCA, the Board of Public Education must approve the distribution of K-12 
BASE aid for public education.  The schedule is the same as past years, approximately the 25th of each 
month, with adjustment for weekends and holidays.  It has been reviewed by the Board of Investments.  
Proposed payment schedule for fiscal year 2008 was provided.  The Office of Public Instruction 
requested the approval of dates. 
 

MOTION:  Mr. Storrs Bishop moved to approve the dates of distribution for the K-12 BASE 
aid payment schedule for the 2008 fiscal year.  Mr. Cal Gilbert seconded.  Motion passed 
unanimously.  Dr. Kirk Miller absent for the vote. 

 
Item 17  COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS-Patty Myers 
Ms. Patty Myers requested Ms. Sharon Carroll to be the Chair of the Assessment Committee.  After 
discussion by the Board, it was further recommended that the new Student Representative, Ms. Katie 
Wood, fulfill the same committee assignments as Ms. Jenny Tiskus.  Ms. Jenny Tiskus has been a 
member of the Accreditation Committee and the Legislative Committee. 

 
MOTION:  Mr. John Fuller moved that Ms. Sharon Carroll be the Chair of the Assessment 
Committee and that Ms. Katie Wood fulfill the same committee assignments as the current 
student representative.  Ms. Angela McLean seconded.  Motion passed unanimously.  Dr. 
Kirk Miller absent for the vote.  

 
11:40 a.m. Dr. Kirk Miller arrived 
 
Item 18   DETERMINE LOCATION OF SEPTEMBER 13-14, 2007 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
AND BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING-Patty Myers 
Ms. Patty Myers stated that the Board of Education’s bylaws needs to be changed to reflect the motion 
that was passed in regard to the Board of Education meetings  The motion that reflects this change in the 
BOE’s bylaws occurred on September 11, 2003 when “Regent Semmens moved that the by-laws be 
amended to set meeting dates to be concurrent with the January meeting of the Board of Regents and 
with the September meeting of the Board of Public Education.  The motion was seconded by Patty Myers 
and unanimously carried.”  Ms. Patty Myers requested that Ms. Carol Will present the possible meeting 
locations for the Board of Education and the Board of Public Education meeting in September 2007.  Ms. 
Denise Juneau provided Ms. Carol Will with the following options:  Lodge Grass Public School, Pryor 
Public School, and Lame Deer Public School.  Ms. Carol Will recommended that the meeting be held at 
Pryor Public School and commute from Billings, MT.  Ms. Cindy O’Dell from Salish Kootenai College 
invited the Board of Public Education to hold these meetings on the college’s campus.  Discussion 
ensued with the desire of the Board to hold this meeting in eastern Montana and take into consideration 
the commuting distance for hotel accommodations to the meeting site.   

 
MOTION:  Mr. John Fuller moved to hold the September Board of Public Education and the 
Board of Education meetings in the Lame Deer Public School.  Mr. Cal Gilbert seconded.  
Motion passed unanimously.   
 

11:45 Adjourned for lunch 



 

 5

 
 
11:45-12:00 p.m. - TECHNOLOGY DEMONSTRATION FROM THE CLASSROOM OF THE VISUALLY 
IMPAIRED DEPARTMENT 
Ms. Carol Clayton-Bye and Mr. Jim Takenaka, teachers for the visually impaired, presented a video of a 
MSDB student making his first phone call using a Morse code system.  In addition, they presented other 
pieces of equipment used by the visually impaired.  
 
12:00 – 1:15 p.m. LUNCH IN THE MSDB CAFETERIA 
 
1:15 – 1:30 p.m.  VIDEO PRODUCTION PRESENTATION IN THE COMPUTER LAB OF THE DEAF 
DEPARTMENT 
Mr. Martin Guhl, Video Production Class Teacher, presented a video of interviews, commercials, a 
musical, and the use of the green screen for reports produced by MSDB’s hearing impaired students from 
the Video Production Class.  
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
Item 10  REAUTHORIZATION OF NCLB-Patricia Chlouber, Secretary Regional Representative, US  
 Department of Education Region 8 
Ms. Pat Chlouber distributed the following documents:   
• President Bush’s Continued Commitment to Education:  2008 Budget Good News for Montana’s 

Children 
    Highlights of the President’s FY 2008 Budget Proposal 

 More Resources for Schools 
o No Child Left Behind Act ($24.5 billion) – up 41% since 2001 
o Title I Program ($13.9 billion) - $1.2 billion increase – up 59% since 2001 
o Title I School Improvement Grants Program ($500 million) 
o American Competitiveness Initiative ($365 million) 

 More Resources for Parents 
o Promise Scholarship ($250 million) and Opportunity Scholarship ($50 million) 

 More Resources for Teachers to Close the Achievement Gap 
o Reading First and Early Reading First Programs ($1.1 billion) and Striving Readers ($100 

million) 
 More Resources for Higher Education 

o Pell Grant Program ($15.4 billion) – up 76% since 2001 
• A Test of Leadership:  Charting the Future of U.S. Higher Education by Secretary Margaret Spellings, 

U.S. Department of Education 
• Letter from Judith Gosnell-Lamb, Big Sky Special Needs Cooperative 
• Building on Results:  A Blueprint for Strengthening The No Child Left Behind Act by Secretary 

Margaret Spellings, U.S. Department of Education 
 

Discussion ensued about the need to promote rigor in high school coursework.  Ms. Pat Chlouber 
referred to the Building on Results:  A Blueprint for Strengthening The No Child Left Behind Act 
document that states: 

“Rigorous coursework in high schools is critical to ensuring that students are learning the skills 
they need to compete in the global economy.  Low-income students who complete a rigorous 
high school course of study are eligible for an Academic Competitiveness Grant (ACG) to help 
with college costs.  The ACG program provides additional grant aid to low-income first- and 
second- year college students who complete a rigorous program of study in high school.  
Through Building on Results, we can increase academic rigor and simultaneously increase the 
number of students who may receive those grants by making Advanced Placement and 
International Baccalaureate classes available to more students and by training teachers to lead 
them.  To promote student participation in courses required for success in college, states will 



 

 6

report completion rates of these college readiness courses by relevant subgroups.” 
 
 
Item 11  NASBE GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE REPORT-Dr. Kirk Miller 
Dr. Kirk Miller distributed the following documents in addition to what was included in the agenda packet:  
Agenda for the NASBE Legislative Conference; 2007 NASBE Legislative Priorities; and Education 
Secretary Margaret Spellings Speaks to State Board Members about Department’s 2007 Priorities.  
Some of the 2007 NASBE legislative priorities include: 
No Child Left Behind Act 

- New law must include the flexibility to allow nationwide implementation to be tailored to 
the unique circumstances of individual states and to take into account the challenges of 
rural areas. 

- Better transparency and more disclosure are needed in all dealings, negotiations, and 
approvals between state and federal education officials. 

• Assessments 
- Assessment policies must use multiple indicators of student achievement and school       

 performance to evaluate progress. 
- Report results in formats and language that parents and the public can easily 

understand, and inform state level policies and programs. 
• Accountability 

- Permit states to use English proficiency attainment to hold schools and districts 
accountable for LEP students (in cases where it would be valid, reliable, and consistent 
with the student’s educational program). 

- Allow states to count students with a disability who successfully complete their IEP (but 
do not earn a diploma based on state academic standards) as proficient in AYP 
calculations. 

• Sanctions 
- Not enforce state compliance with federal rules and regulations through threat of or 

actual withholding of federal funding for unrelated programs. 
- Allow States to set their own professional qualifications for the instructional personnel of 

supplemental service providers. 
 
Dr. Kirk Miller stated that the accountability of special education, according to No Child Left Behind, does 
not fit very well in Montana.  The 1% or 2% exclusionary rules do not do very well in many communities 
across the state of Montana.  Dr. Kirk Miller asked the U.S. Department of Education Secretary Margaret 
Spellings about allowing the IEP to drive the assessment accountability of Special Education identified 
students.  Education Secretary Margaret Spellings responded by stating that the Special Education lobby 
does not want that to happen.  Those who are Special Education lobbyists do not want to be swept under 
the carpet because they need to be part of the entire educational system.  Dr. Kirk Miller followed up with 
the fact that the Department of Education has derived many flexible strategies for English Language 
Learners (ELL).  Dr. Kirk Miller asked if the Department of Education would consider looking at flexible 
modeling of Special Education where the state could test and see whether the state could use the 
student’s Individual Education Plan (IEP) and hold Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 
accountable.  He continued to state that Montana would consider being a pilot to implement some flexible 
modeling.  
 
National Standards 

- Given their authority over the development and adoption of state standards, state boards 
of education must be active participants in the national standards debate. 

- There are important details – such as who would set the standards, how the standards 
would be set, which standards would be developed – that have yet to be worked out 
before policymakers can begin a serious discussion or give consideration to a national 
standards initiative. 

- The alignment or adoption of state standards with national standards must be made 



 

 7

voluntarily by individual states. 
 

NASBE Legislative Brief Republican “A-Plus” Bill Would Allow States Out of Most NCLB Provisions states 
that the “A-PLUS Act will restore accountability to parents and schools as states advance individually 
tailored academic policies. . . . Under A-Plus, a state can only opt out of NCLB requirements if two of 
three state entities give their assent:  the governor, state legislature, and/or the ‘highest elected education 
officials of the state, if any.’” 
 
Item 12 NCLB UPDATE-Nancy Coopersmith  
The presentation included perspectives from national organizations on the Reauthorization of the 
Elementary and Secondary Education Act.  Information included a joint statement from the National 
Governors Association, the Council of Chief State School Officers, and the National Association of State 
Boards of Education, as well as a statement on reauthorization by the National Association of State 
Directors of Special Education.  In addition, the presentation included a timeline for completing and 
disseminating the Adequate Yearly Progress determinations for the 2006-2007 school year.   Ms. Nancy 
Coopersmith reviewed the following documents:   
• Reauthorization of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) National Association of 

State Directors of Special Education (NASDSE) Reauthorization Priorities 
• National Governors Association (NGA), the Council of Chief State School Officers (CCSO,) and the 

National Association of State Boards of Education (NASBE) No Child Left Behind Recommendations 
to Congress  

• A letter to Honorable Edward “Ted” M. Kennedy, Honorable George Miller; Honorable Michael B. 
Enzi; and the Honorable Howard P. “Buck” McKeon.  The letter included the following attachments:  
Joint Statement on Reauthorization of the No Child Left Behind Act (NCLB); ECW-2 Education 
Reform; and Recommendations to Reauthorize the Elementary and Secondary Education Act 

• E-Grants NCLB Consolidated Program Application Videoconference Training Schedule 
 
Item 13  NASBE RECOMMENDATIONS - CITIZENS FOR THE 21ST CENTURY-John Fuller 
Mr. John Fuller stated that the state of Montana is following most of the recommendations of NASBE on 
the Citizens for the 21st Century quite well despite funding limitations.  Mr. Steve Meloy revisited Chief 
Justice Gray’s stress for the need of civics education, We the People curriculum and Ms. Jenny Tiskus’s 
question directed to Senator Bob Graham at the NASBE Conference. Mr. Steve Meloy suggested that the 
Board addresses civic education in its five-year strategic plan that will be revisited in July 2007.  Ms. 
Angela McLean requested that the Board send this document to Chief Justice Gray. 
 
Item 14  FUTURE OF NORM REFERENCED TESTING-Steve Meloy 
• Mr. Steve Meloy provided a history of the NRT discussion according to the Board of Public 

Education’s previously written minutes.  Some key points that were addressed at the May 2006 BPE 
meeting were:  Assessing social studies and language arts; classroom assessments aligning to the 
state’s standards; assessment should be tied closely to classroom instruction; set a window for 
testing as far in advance as possible due to the advanced yearly schedule; and the need to look at 
the Mission Statements for the Montana Assessment System.  Some key points that were addressed 
at the January 2007 BPE meeting were: OPI’s assessment budget request for the 2009 biennium 
thatincludes $310,000 for fiscal year 2008 and $325,000 for fiscal year 2009 for a norm-referenced 
test in grades 4, 8, and 11; the contract with Riverside Publishing Company that expires June 30, 
2007; State Superintendent Linda McCulloch’s recommendation to discontinue administering the 
norm-referenced test (NRT) for a period of time and re-evaluate yearly; data is not being used to 
make instructional decisions; OPI cannot provide any additional staff for support; there is no 
continuity of the Iowa test; and criterion-referenced tests are required with No Child Left Behind 
(NCLB).  

• Mr. Steve Meloy stated that 10-56-101 spells out the Board of Public Education’s adoption of rules for 
state-level assessment, but does not mention any assessment in particular.  However, 10-55-603 (4) 
says “in addition to the school-by-school reporting of norm-referenced testing results in accordance 
with ARM 10-56-101, districts shall annually report to the Office of Public Instruction the school level 



 

 8

results of measures for the standards that are not adequately assess by the norm-referenced test.”  
Mr. Steve Meloy continued to state that if the Board were to substitute the CRT for the NRT it would 
simply require amending 10-55-603 (4).  He also pointed out that 10-55-603 (3) (a) calls for school 
districts to use effective and appropriate multiple measures and methods to assess student progress 
in achieving content and performance standards in all program areas.  The Board could consider 
amending 10-55-603(4) and then bringing OPI, the Board, and its partners together in a task force to 
determine appropriate assessments in the classroom which effectively inform instruction.  Mr. Steve 
Meloy believes there isn’t any language in the law behind the appropriation for the NRT that binds the 
Board to utilizing the appropriation for the NRT in the next biennium. 

• Correspondence in regard to the NRT was included from Superintendent Jack Copps, Billings Public 
Schools; Mr. Bill Laurent, Independent School, Billings, MT; Principal Kevin Croff, Meadowlark 
Elementary, Billings, MT; Mr. William Appleton, Director of Curriculum/Assessment/Federal 
Programs, Polson School District #23, Polson, MT; and John English, Principal, Bench Elementary, 
Billings, MT.  All correspondence included was in opposition to the continuance of the NRT.  

• It was clarified in the discussion that the Board recommends the discontinuance of the state 
requirement for the use of Norm-Referenced Tests (NRT) and the Iowa Test of Basic Skills (ITBS).  
This would allow districts to use these assessments, but not be required to report the results to the 
Office of Public Instruction.  Dr. Kirk Miller suggested that the Board add an action item (Item 22b) to 
the agenda to vote on the action that the Board chooses to take in regard to the NRT.  Dr. Kirk Miller 
recommends that the Board discontinue the requirement of the state to report the ITBS results and 
that the Board develop with the Office of Public Instruction an assessment task force that would make 
recommendations as to what type of assessments would be put in place that would inform classroom 
instruction and make recommendations to the revisions necessary to 10-55-603. Board discussion 
followed. 

 
Item 15  LEGISLATIVE UPDATE-Steve Meloy and John Fuller 
Mr. Steve Meloy stated that all of the bills which would adversely impact the Board directly failed to pass 
the legislature.  The major funding bills of interest died as a result of the failure of the legislature to act on 
them prior to the end of the session.  Some bills included: 
• HB 417, which was the bill that the Senate amended to include many of the pieces of SB 152, which 

was the Governor’s plan.  Inflationary increases for K-12 and fulltime kindergarten were included. 
• HB 678 was the Republican plan to provide permanent tax relief by increasing direct state aid to 

schools. 
• HB 809 which included the budget for OPI. 
• HB 820 funded many state agencies including the BPE and MSDB. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
The public will be afforded the opportunity to comment before the Board on every action item on 
the agenda prior to final Board action. 

 
ACTION ITEMS  

 
MEETING WAS CLOSED FOR ITEMS 19 - 20 

 
Item 19   MSDB SUPERINTENDENT PERFORMANCE EVALUATION & CONTRACT EXTENSION 
DISCUSSION-Patty Myers 
 
  MOTION:  Ms. Angela McLean moved to extend the contract of Montana School for the      

  Deaf and Blind’s Superintendent Steve Gettel, until June 30, 2010.  Mr. John Fuller             
  seconded.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Item 20   EXECUTIVE SECRETARY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION & CONTRACT EXTENSION  
DISCUSSION-Patty Myers  



 

 9

 
 MOTION:  Ms. Angela McLean moved to extend the contract of the Board of Public 
 Education’s Executive Secretary Steve Meloy, until June 30, 2010.  Mr. John Fuller 
 seconded.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Item 21   ESTABLISH EXECUTIVE STAFF SALARIES-Patty Myers 
Ms. Patty Myers delayed action on establishing executive staff salaries until the contract negotiations as a 
result of the special legislative session have been settled with the MSDB’s staff.   
 
Adjourned at 4:00 p.m. 
 
May 11, 2007 – Friday 
8:30 a.m.   
 
Item 22a  RECOMMENDATION FOR FINAL ACTION – 10.55.907 DISTANCE, ONLINE, 
TECHNOLOGY DELIVERED LEARNING; 10.55.602 DEFINITIONS; 10.55.701 BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES; AND 10.55.705 ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL:  AND ASSIGNMENT OF 
SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS/PRINCIPALS-Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson 
Ms. Patty Myers welcomed those who came to the Board of Public Education to comment on this 
particular item and explained to all present how the Board was going to proceed.  Dr. Linda Vrooman 
Peterson provided an overview of the rule on the Distance Learning Task Force, their recommendations 
to the Board of Public Education and the Superintendent of Public Instruction, and the next phase of the 
task force.  Dr. Kirk Miller reviewed the process, the purpose, and the guiding principle of the Distance 
Learning Task Force as they completed phase I. 
 
 MOTION:  Mr. Storrs Bishop moved to adopt the recommendations of the task force 

regarding 10.55.907 Distance, Online, Technology Delivered Learning; 10.55.602 
Definitions; 10.55.701 Board of Trustees; and 10.55.705 Administrative Personnel:  
Assignment of School Administrators and Principals.  Ms. Sharon Carroll seconded.   

 
Dr. Kirk Miller moved to amend the motion: 
 
 MOTION:  Dr. Kirk Miller moved to delay implementation of 10.55.907 section (3) and (3) 

(a).  Mr. John Fuller seconded. 
 
Dr. Kirk Miller explained that sections 10.55.907 (3) and (3) (a) are the meat of the discussion that 
surrounds licensed and endorsed teachers in Montana.  He supports licensure and endorsement, but is 
concerned that some school districts may not have the capacity that may involve appropriation to 
implement the rule in the manner that it was amended by the task force.  A study would need to be 
conducted to determine the capacity of school districts to meet this rule.  Dr. Kirk Miller stated that this 
amendment to the motion would allow school districts some time to effectively implement this rule.  Mr. 
Eric Feaver questioned Dr. Kirk Miller about the parameters of the delay and how a capacity study would 
be constructed?  Discussion ensued about the parameters of the delay and the study of capacity that 
would be conducted by phase II of the Distance Learning Task Force.  Mr. John Fuller offered a friendly 
amendment that was accepted by Dr. Kirk Miller, the maker of the original motion. 
 

   MOTION (as friendly amended): Dr. Kirk Miller moved to delay implementation of 
Distance, Online, and Technology Delivered Learning 10.55.907 sections (3) and (3) (a) to 
no later than the school year 2009-2010.  Mr. Storrs Bishop seconded.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
There was significant support for the delayed implementation amendment.  After the delayed 
implementation motion was passed the following visitors testified in opposition to the rule:  Dr. Mary 
Sheehy Moe, Dean of MSU-Great Falls College of Technology; Mr. Dan Zorn, Assistant Superintendent 



 

 10

of Kalispell Public Schools; Mr. Brian Patrick, Superintendent of Townsend Public Schools; Ms. Patricia 
Peebles, concerned parent; Mr. Les Meyers, Fairfield High School; Mr. Ryan Schrenk, Director of 
Technology for Facilitated Learning, MSU-Great Falls; Ms. Barbara Mansfield, Counselor, Whitefish High 
School; and Mr. Larry Crowder, Superintendent of Culbertson Public Schools.  Some of the issues that 
were raised in opposition were: the effects that the rule change would have on dual credit, cost of college 
courses to families, licensure and endorsement of college professors, licensure and endorsement on one 
side or the other of the facilitated, and limiting opportunities for students.  Mr. Eric Feaver, MEA-MFT 
President, spoke in support of the rule as proposed.  Mr. Eric Feaver asked, “What is it about the 
teaching profession that says that somehow or another if it’s expensive or inconvenient or out of the way, 
teachers don’t have to be licensed and endorsed?”  Once the visitors had the opportunity to comment, 
individual members of the Board of Public Education expressed their point of view regarding the rule.  Ms. 
Patty Myers reiterated the motion before the Board:   
 
 MOTION RESTATED:  To adopt the recommendations of the task force regarding 

10.55.907, Distance, Online, and Technology Delivered Learning; 10.55.602 Definitions; 
10.55.701 Board of Trustees; and 10.55.705 Administrative Personnel and the 
Assignment of School Administrators/Principals with a delayed implementation date of 
no later than July 1, 2009 on 10.55.907 (3) and (3) (a).   Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Item 23   ACCREDITATION UPDATE – ADDENDUM TO THE 2006-2007 ACCREDITATION STATUS  
RECOMMENDATIONS – ALTERNATIVE TO STANDARDS REQUESTS- Al McMilin, Educator Quality 
Specialist 
The Superintendent of Public Instruction made the following recommendations to the Board of Public 
Education:  

1) Addendum to the 2006-2007 Accreditation Status Recommendations – Page 6 of the 2006-2007 
Montana Accreditation Status Recommendations - Addendum #1 – May 2007 provided a 
summary of the corrected figures.  It was discussed by the Board that the figures were 
impressive because the districts had support, time, and increased funding to help them comply 
with the standards.  Discussion ensued how the Office of Public Instruction and the Board of 
Public Education could build evidence for continued support through the legislative process. 

2) Alternative Standard Requests – Five-Year Renewal Recommendations for Jackson Elementary 
in Beaverhead County for standard 10.55.709 - Library Media Services and standard 10.55.710 - 
School Counseling Services.   

 
 MOTION:  Mr. Storrs Bishop moved to recommend approval of the addendum to the 

2006-2007 Accreditation Status.  Ms. Angela McLean seconded.  Motion passed 
unanimously.  

 
 MOTION:  Mr. Storrs Bishop moved to approve the alternative standard requests – five-

year recommendations.  Mr. Cal Gilbert seconded.  Motion passed unanimously.   
 
Item 22b  FUTURE OF NORM REFERENCED TESTING – Dr. Kirk Miller 
This item directly refers to the discussion of Item 14 on the Board of Public Education’s May 10, 2007 
agenda.  This item was added to the agenda.  Dr. Kirk Miller stated that State Superintendent Linda 
McCulloch recommended to the Board of Public Education in January 2007 to discontinue the 
requirement of reporting the Norm-Referenced Test.  The use of the NRT has been valuable; however, 
the tools that have become available to assess the needs of Montana’s students and to direct instruction 
are changing.  The Board of Public Education believes that it is time to modernize the way that 
assessment is approached in Montana.  An Assessment Task Force will be established by the Board of 
Public Education and the Office of Public Instruction. 
 

MOTION:  Dr. Kirk Miller moved to discontinue the required use of the ITBS/ITED for state 
reporting purposes and establish with the Office of Public Instruction a task force to:   
1) recommend assessments that will inform instruction to be available to all Montana 
schools; and 2) recommend revisions to Administrative Rule of Montana 10-55-603 to 



 

 11

reflect these assessment recommendations.  Ms. Sharon Carroll seconded.  Motion 
passed unanimously.     

 
Item 25   RECOMMENDATION FOR FINAL ACTION – MAJOR IN MATHEMATICS 5-12 TEACHING  
ENDORSEMENT PROPOSED BY MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY-NORTHERN PROFESSIONAL 
EDUCATION UNIT-Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson and James Longin, Academic Dean, Montana 

State 
University-Northern 
The Office of Public Instruction recommended to the Board of Public Education approval of the request by 
Montana State University – Northern to add a Mathematics Major to the Professional Education Unit’s 
educator endorsement program areas.  Mr. Bob Johnke and Mr. Charles Pollington from Montana State 
University – Northern spoke of the importance to provide the Mathematics Major to the university’s 
Professional Education Unit.   

 
MOTION:  Dr. Kirk Miller moved to approve the Major in Mathematics 5-12 teaching 
endorsement as proposed by Montana State University – Northern Professional Education 
Unit.  Ms. Angela McLean seconded.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
12:15 p.m. Adjourned for lunch 
 
1:00 p.m. Reconvened 
 
Item 24   RECOMMENDATION FOR FINAL ACTION – MINOR IN PHYSICS 5-12 TEACHING 
ENDORSEMENT PROPOSED BY CARROLL COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION UNIT – Dr.  
Linda Vrooman Peterson and Lynette Zuroff, Carroll College, Chairwoman, Department of 
Education 
The Office of Public Instruction recommended to the Board of Public Education approval of the request by 
Carroll College to add a Physics Minor in secondary education to the Professional Education Unit’s 
educator endorsement program areas. 
 
             MOTION:  Dr. Kirk Miller moved to approve the Physics Minor in secondary education to 

the Professional Education Unit as proposed at Carroll College.  Mr. Storrs Bishop 
seconded. Motion passed unanimously.  Ms. Angela McLean absent for the vote.  

 
Item 27   PROPOSED RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT NASBE’S GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR NCLB  
REAUTHORIZATION-Dr. Kirk Miller 
Dr. Kirk Miller presented to the Board of Public Education a draft of a resolution to support the National 
Association of State Boards of Education’s (NASBE)  Guiding Principles for No Child Left Behind (NCLB) 
Reauthorization, given the centrality of issues related to standards, assessment accountability and 
teacher quality.  This resolution recognizes the need for flexibility in state assessment requirements, 
better alignment of state and federal accountability systems, increasing federal investment in state 
capacity, accommodations in teacher qualifications, and transparency in all dealings between state and 
federal officials.  Overall, the resolution acknowledged that shifting from a law of absolutes to one that 
recognizes that a one-size-fits-all approach is difficult, if not impossible. 
 
 MOTION:  Dr. Kirk Miller moved to support the Board of Public Education’s resolution to 

support the National Association of State Boards of Education’s (NASBE) Guiding 
Principles for No Child Left Behind (NCLB) Reauthorization.  Mr. Cal Gilbert seconded.  
Motion passed unanimously.  Ms. Angela McLean absent for the vote.  

 
INFORMATION ITEM 
    
Item 28   MSDB COMMITTEE MEETING REPORT-Steve Gettel 

• Student Enrollment/Evaluation 



 

 12

• Human Resources 
o Personnel Actions 
o Update on core competencies project 
o Update on status of collective bargaining with MEA-MFT/UFCW 

• 2007 Legislative Session 
o Update on final action HB 820, HB 830, and HB 354 

• School Improvement 
o Update on school improvement activities 
o Update on implementation of UNHS guidelines for early intervention 

• Professional Development Activities 
o Update on in-service training and plans for 07-08 

• MSDB Foundation Activities 
• Conferences, Meetings, and Contacts 
• Finance and Facilities 

o Update on budget and current maintenance projects 
• School Calendar of Events 
• Student News 
• Public Comment for Non Agenda Items 

Mr. Steve Gettel requested direction from the Board of Public Education on how to provide services for 
out-reach students. 
 
ACTION ITEM 
 
Item 26   TEACHER LICENSURE ISSUES-Cathy Warhank 
NANCY GEDE APPEAL 
Mr. Steve Meloy presided over the contested case hearing in the matter of Nancy Gede vs. the Office of 
Public Instruction, Case No. 2007-01 BPE.  This was a case involving the denial of a Montana teacher 
license and pursuant to the ARM rule 10.57.609.  Since the Board of Public Education heard the 
contested case, the decision about the order of presentation was made by the Board. 
 

MOTION:  Dr. Kirk Miller moved to conduct the hearing as outlined by the hearings officer, 
Mr. Steve Meloy.  Ms. Sharon Carroll seconded.  Motion passed unanimously.  Ms. Angela 
McLean absent for the vote. 

 
Ms. Nancy Gede appealed the decision of the Office of Public Instruction to deny her a Special Education 
Endorsement for the state of Montana.  She provided the Board of Public Education with transcripts, 
California and Colorado licenses, resume, letters of recommendation, and certificates of continuing 
education.  Ms. Nancy Gede did not present the evidence that she has met two of the minimum 
requirements for licensure:  1) 10.57.412 Class 1 and 2 Endorsements:  evidence of successful 
completion of 30 semester credits in an approved major and 20 semester credits in an approved minor, 
and 2) 10.57.301 (7) (b) (i) and (ii): evidence of completion of an out-of-state, state approved special 
education program which includes student teaching or university supervised experience.   
 
Ms. Elizabeth Keller, Educator Licensure Manager, OPI and Ms. Cathy Warhank, Chief Legal Counsel, 
OPI presented documentation of Ms. Nancy Gede’s academic preparation and teaching licenses.  This 
document also included what Ms. Nancy Gede as met in regard to: 1) license eligibility of 10.57.201, 
General Provisions to Issue Licenses; 10.57.102, Definitions; and 10.57.411 (2), To obtain a Class 1 
Professional Teacher’s License; and 2) endorsement eligibility of 10.57.412 Class 1 and 2 Endorsements. 
Additional review was also provided, because when an applicant does not qualify for full licensure, OPI 
also evaluates for Class 5 Alternative License eligibility.   Thorough discussion ensued between BPE, 
OPI, and Ms. Nancy Gede.  The final recommendation to Ms. Nancy Gede was to have the university 
system conduct a transcript review and submit the results to the Office of Public Instruction for further 
review. 
 



 

 13

             MOTION:  Dr. Kirk Miller moved to delay action from the Board of Public Education until 
July 2007 to provide Ms. Nancy Gede the opportunity to obtain a transcript review from a 
higher education institution.  Mr. Cal Gilbert seconded.  Motion passed unanimously.  Ms. 
Angela McLean absent for the vote.  

 
PRELIMINARY AGENDA ITEMS STRATEGIC PLANNING MEETING – July 11, 2007 
2-Year Annual Agenda Calendar 
BPE Bylaws 
Committee Goals and Objectives 
 
 
 
PRELIMINARY AGENDA ITEMS BPE MEETING– July 12-13, 2007 
Student Representative’s Last Meeting  
Assessment Update 
NCLB Update 
MACIE Update 
Annual GED Report 
Special Education Report 
High School Graduation Requirements 
Salish Kootenai College’s final report – Action Item  
Nancy Gede Appeal – Action Item 
Assessment Task Force 
Distance Learning Task Force 
 
Meeting was adjourned by concurrence of the Board at 3:09 p.m. 
 
 
 



 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
CONFERENCE CALL MEETING MINUTES 

 
June 13, 2007 

 
June 13, 2007 
2:00 p.m. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairperson Patty Myers called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. on Wednesday, June 13, 2007.  
Carol Will took roll call: a quorum was noted. 
 
Those in attendance at the meeting included the following Board members:  Chairperson Patty 
Myers, Vice Chairperson Angela McLean, Dr. Kirk Miller, and Sharon Carroll.  Staff present at 
the meeting included:  Steve Meloy, Executive Secretary, Board of Public Education and Carol 
Will, Administrative Assistant, Board of Public Education.  Visitor in attendance at the meeting 
was Bill Sykes, Business Manager, Montana School for the Deaf and Blind. 
 
COMMENT 
Mr. Steve Meloy commented that this conference call meeting was properly noticed on the 
Board of Education’s web site. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 1 - Establish Executive Staff Salaries 

a. Mr. Steve Gettel, Superintendent, Montana School for the Deaf and Blind’s salary 
request was presented to the Board by Bill Sykes, MSDB’s Business Manager, since Mr. 
Steve Gettel was in Idaho.  Mr. Bill Sykes proposed a 5% raise which would bring Mr. 
Steve Gettel’s annual salary to $80,974.00.  Discussion ensued about the significance of 
the staff and administrators receiving significant raises due to increased funding and the 
need to be more competitive with other schools.  Mr. Bill Sykes was asked specifically 
about the range of percentage increases to other members of the staff and he responded 
that they are still negotiating.   

 
MOTION:  Ms. Angela McLean moved to accept the proposed salary of the 
Superintendent of the Montana School for the Deaf and Blind at the annual rate of 
$80.974.00 from July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2010.  Dr. Kirk Miller seconded.  Motion 
carried unanimously.  Mr. Storrs Bishop, Mr. Cal Gilbert, and Mr. John Fuller were 
absent from the vote.   
 
b. Mr. Steve Meloy, Executive Secretary, Montana Board of Public Education’s salary 

request was presented before the Board.  Mr. Steve Meloy requested a 3% increase in his 
annual salary.   

 
 

 1



 

MOTION:  Dr. Kirk Miller moved a 3% increase in the Executive Secretary’s annual 
salary for the Board of Public Education for July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2010.  Ms. Sharon 
Carroll seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  Mr. Storrs Bishop, Mr. Cal Gilbert, 
and Mr. John Fuller were absent from the vote. 
 

Item 2 – 2008 NASBE Board of Directors Vote 
During the Board of Public Education’s meeting on May 10-11, 2007 the western area ballot for 
the 2008 NASBE Board of Directors was presented for action.  Biographical information was 
presented for Kenneth Willard, Kansas, President-elect; Greg Haws, Utah, Secretary-Treasurer; 
and Randy Dehoff, Colorado, Western Area Director.  The Board took action to vote for each 
director on the ballot.  Since taking action, some BPE members received an article from the New 
York Times dated May 19, 2007 titled:  Evolution Opponent Is in Line for Schools Post, written 
by Cornelia Dean.  The article states that the NASBE’s President-elect candidate, Kenneth R. 
Willard, is “a member of the Kansas school board who supported its efforts against the teaching 
of evolution.”  The Board of Public Education considered rescinding its vote, noting that it 
wouldn’t prevent Mr. Kenneth Willard from becoming President-elect but it would state the 
principle that the Board of Public Education does support the teaching of different theories.  Mr. 
Steve Meloy contacted Ms. Marsha McMullin, NASBE’s Director of Special Projects, and stated 
that the Board could resubmit a new ballot if different action occurred by the Board and it was 
received at the Association Headquarters by June 29, 2007.  On June 12, 2007, the Board of 
Public Education received a letter from NASBE stating that the Board of Directors have 
“considered at length all the multiple issues this election raises – everything from [NASBE’s] 
association goals and operating procedures to candidate qualifications and [NASBE’s] current 
level of member engagement.”  Discussion ensued whether or not the Board of Public Education 
should resubmit its vote since it was still within the parameters of the deadline and the 
procedures of NASBE’s election process.   
 
      MOTION:  Ms. Angela McLean moved to send two letters to NASBE:  1) to address the 

election procedures and make revision recommendations; and 2) to address the Board 
of Public Education’s stance of teaching evolution according to Montana’s Science 
Standards and that the vote of the Board does not endorse Ms. Kenneth Willard’s 
personal opinions specifically relating to the teaching of evolution.  Ms. Sharon Carroll 
seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  Mr. Storrs Bishop, Mr. Cal Gilbert, and Mr. 
John Fuller were absent from the vote. 

 
 MOTION:  Ms. Angela McLean moved to adjourn the meeting.  Dr. Kirk Miller 

seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  Mr. Storrs Bishop, Mr. Cal Gilbert, and Mr. 
John Fuller were absent from the vote. 

 
2:45 p.m. Meeting Adjourned 
 
 

 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 21, 2007 
 
NASBE 
Brenda Welburn, Executive Director 
277 S. Washington Street Suite 100 
Alexandria, VA 22314 
 
Dear Ms. Welburn, 
 
Thank you for the NASBE Board of Directors’ letter dated June 7, 2007 regarding 
this spring’s election for president-elect of NASBE.  In the spirit of that letter, the 
Montana Board of Public Education would like to express its opinion regarding 
the election of the top officer of this organization.   
 
During a special meeting of the Board on June 13, 2007 and based on discussion 
regarding NASBE’s elections, the Board unanimously decided to express its 
concerns regarding the election process.  Current NASBE bylaws allow one 
individual to ascend to a three-year term without further consideration or input 
from NASBE’s membership.  Montana’s Board believes that the bylaws should 
be amended to require annual elections for each position in order to assure 
accountability and maintenance to NASBE’s goals and visions pertaining to 
public education.   
 
We appreciate NASBE’s historic efforts to welcome and encourage participation 
of those with different and diverse perspectives.  However, we believe that 
acquiescence to different perspectives should be subject to annual member 
approval. 
 
Thank you for your opportunity to comment and consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Patty Myers, Chair 
Montana Board of Public Education 
 
Cc:  Public Education Policies Committee 
       Lynne Farrell, CT 























 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  INTERESTED PARTIES 
 
FROM: STEVE MELOY, EXECUTIVE SECRETARY 
 
RE:  DISTANCE LEARNING RULE ADOPTION NOTICE 
 
DATE: MAY 17, 2007 
 
 
Enclosed is the Board of Public Education’s accreditation rule adoption 
notice as it will be published on May 24, 2007.  The effective date for these 
rules is May 25, 2007 with the exception of 10.55.907 (3) and (3)(a) which 
has a delayed effective date of 7/1/2009.     
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (406) 444-6576 
or smeloy@montana.edu.   

mailto:smeloy@montana.edu




Article published May 12, 2007 
New rule requires supervision for distance learning 
By ERIC NEWHOUSE  
Tribune Projects Editor  

Over the objections of school administrators and parents, the Montana Board of Public Education 
on Friday unanimously passed an online-education proposal backed by the teachers' union.  

It requires that all distance learning, including college courses, be supervised by a Montana-
certified K-12 teacher endorsed in the discipline being taught.  

However, the board voted to delay implementation of the rule change to no later than July 1, 
2009, to tweak the proposal and give the Legislature time to fund it.  

There was no estimate of what it might cost to provide certified teachers in state school districts.  

During a 2 1/2-hour public hearing, Montana Education Association/Montana Federation of 
Teachers President Eric Feaver was the only witness to testify in favor of certification.  

"What is it about the teaching profession that if it is too expensive or inconvenient or out of the 
way, it's OK not to be licensed?" Feaver asked. "That standard isn't acceptable for doctors or 
lawyers or CPAs."  

But school administrators and parents noted that students would be unable to get credit for 
specialized online classes if their school didn't have a teacher certified in that discipline or if the 
instructor, usually a college professor, didn't have state high-school certification.  

"I'm appalled by this rule and ask that you exempt the distance-learning provisions," said Mary 
Sheehy Moe, dean of MSU-Great Falls College of Technology.  

She noted that MSU-Great Falls offers 17 dual-credit courses online for high-school students, in 
which they earn high-school and college credits. Courses range from art history to psychology.  

"These are college credit courses that reflect the standards of the institutions offering them," she 
said, adding that high-school officials can refuse to grant credit to courses that they feel don't 
measure up to standards.  

"Requiring facilitators in the high school in the same discipline creates an insurmountable barrier 
to small rural schools," Sheehy Moe said.  

Larry Crowder, superintendent of Culbertson schools, said the rule change would block his 
students from getting credit for a college course in Swahili.  

"We have facilitators available to supervise the class, but none that are certified in Swahili," he 
said.  

Brian Patrick, Townsend schools superintendent, said the rule change would bar courses from 
institutions outside Montana.  

"I'm opposed to this rule because it builds a wall around Montana, although I do agree we need a 
gatekeeper," he said.  



Dan Zorn, school superintendent in Kalispell, said the new rule makes it harder for struggling 
high-school students to make up classes they need in order to graduate.  

"We fear that removing those options would dash their hopes of graduation and increase the 
dropout rate," Zorn said.  

Patrick added that in addition to at-risk students, gifted students benefit from distance learning.  

"With our budgets today, we don't have much to offer our gifted students," said Patrick. "Distance 
learning fills that gap."  

Patricia Peebles, a Kalispell parent, said the Running Start program was instrumental in allowing 
her children to graduate from high school. She asked the board not to limit those opportunities.  

"At a time when budget cuts are making headlines, it's unthinkable that the Board of Public 
Education would consider jeopardizing this program," she said.  

She noted that dual-credit courses are crucial to students with limited means.  

"The Running Start program, with its reduced tuition and college credits, is imperative," Peebles 
said. "One person called this a turf war, but it's a turf war that only hurts our students."  

Feaver said the issue was simply one of enforcing Montana standards, not those in other states.  

"We're not talking about barriers," he insisted. "We're talking about honesty."  

In the end, board members praised the discussion, saying they'd learned from it, but voted 
unanimously to adopt the distance-learning revisions.  

Board member Kirk Miller said the delayed implementation would give the 22-member task force 
time to consider the objections, refine the regulations, determine whether the education system 
has the capacity to implement the changes and calculate how much more money school districts 
would need to do so.  

"It will require further appropriations, which we have no control over," Miller said. "That's at 
another table, the legislative table."  

After the meeting, Sheehy Moe stood for a moment in the parking lot of the Montana School for 
the Deaf and the Blind, where the meeting was held.  

"You know what they just did?" she asked. "They just required that college professors (teaching 
high-school students online) have to be Montana high-school certified."  

 



Article published May 11, 2007 
Distance-learning certification passes board of 
education 

Over the objections of school administrators and parents, the Montana Board of Public Education 
unanimously passed an online education proposal Friday pushed by the teachers’ union.  

It requires that all distance learning, including college courses, be supervised by a Montana-
certified K-12 teacher accredited in the discipline being taught.  

However, the board voted to delay implementation of the rule change to no later than July 1, 
2009, to tweak the proposal and give the Legislature time to fund it. 
 
There was no estimate of what it might cost to provide accredited teachers in state school 
districts. 
 
During a two-and-a-half hour public hearing, MEA-MFT President Eric Feaver was the only 
witness to testify in favor of certification. MEA-MFT is the state teachers union. 
 
“What is it about the teaching profession that if it is too expensive or inconvenient or out of the 
way, it’s OK not to be licensed?” Feaver asked. “That standard isn’t acceptable for doctors or 
lawyers or CPAs." 
 
School administrators and parents noted that students would be unable to get credit for 
specialized online classes if their school didn’t have a teacher certified in that discipline or if the 
instructor, usually a college professor, didn’t have state high school certification.  

 



Rule change poses new challenges for online 
education 
By KRISTEN CATES  
Tribune Staff Writer 

The Montana Board of Public Education is prepared to vote on a rule change on Friday that could 
impact online courses for students and the instructors who teach and supervise some classes.  

Under current rules, the Board of Public Education allows high school students to take distance-
learning courses and be supervised by the instructor, usually from a college, as they complete the 
class.  

But the board will vote on changing that rule so that those who teach the 
online courses must be a certified K-12 teacher in Montana. If not, the 

supervising teacher at the local high school must be certified in the area of study of the online 
course.  

Guidance counselors across the state say they see the rule as a threat to offering courses that 
normally wouldn't be provided at some high schools.  

But Montana Education Association-Montana Federation of Teachers President Eric Feaver said 
the purpose of the rule change is to ensure that the profession of teaching doesn't get thrown out 
the window in order to cut corners.  

"If anybody can teach — in other words there are no standards that apply — you have no 
teaching profession," he said.  

He compared it to going to a doctor who doesn't have a license to practice medicine.  

"If we have a profession then we must maintain those standards," he said. "We have to stop 
saying we diminish what we do because it costs money."  

In a rural school district, such as Choteau or Simms, the distance-learning program allows 
students to take recovery courses, such as English, online during the summer so that they can 
stay on track for an on-time graduation.  

Diane Stinger, guidance counselor at Simms High School, said students who live in rural areas 
are often unable to get to town in the summer to take classes, so the district pre-approves an 
online course that they can take from home.  

Stinger's said her understanding is that with the rule change, a teacher would have to work 
through the summer to supervise that class.  

"With budget cuts, it could get very serious," she said.  

The other concern is that students who are trying to earn dual college and high school credits 
through online courses won't be able to do so anymore.  

Eva Anseth, guidance counselor at Choteau High School, said she has one student enrolled in an 
online medical terminology class through Montana State University-Great Falls College of 
Technology.  

ADVERTISEMENT 
  



"There's no way we could offer it to her," Anseth said.  

Anseth said that when a student enrolls in an online course, she helps the student get started and 
checks grades, but it is up to the student and the instructor to get the job done. She can't recall a 
time when it has created a problem for the district.  

"We haven't seen the downside to it," she said.  

Mary Sheehy Moe, dean of MSU-Great Falls, said the college started offering dual-credit courses 
to students in Great Falls Public Schools four to five years ago, which allows them to take 
college-level courses at a discounted rate. In recent years, the distance-learning courses have 
expanded to 13 different schools, Moe said.  

Under the new rule, the teachers at MSU-Great Falls, who are already required to have a 
master's degree in their field, according to the Regents' standards, would have to get licensed as 
a K-12 teacher. If the change is adopted, Moe said the college will quit offering online courses for 
high school students.  

"It doesn't hurt us," she said. "It hurts the kids."  

Feaver said the rule change is not related to dual-credit programs, but Moe said it will 
inadvertently hurt them.  

The Montana Board of Public Education meets today and Friday at the Montana School for the 
Deaf and the Blind. The distance learning rule change will be voted on at 8:30 a.m. Friday.  

Reach Tribune Staff Writer Kristen Cates at 791-1463 or kcates@greatfallstribune.com

 
 



From: Meloy, Steve 
Sent: Thursday, May 03, 2007 9:26 AM 
To: Kristi Albertson; Will, Carol; Angela McLean; Cal Gilbert; Jenny Tiskus; John 
Fuller (fullerj@sd5.k12.mt.us); Kirk Miller (millerk@havre.k12.mt.us); Patty Myers 
(patty_myers@gfps.k12.mt.us); Patty Myers (pattymyers@sofast.net); Sharon Carroll; 
Storrs Bishop 
Subject: RE: distance learning and dual credit info 
Dear Ms. Albertson, 
 
The action before the Board of Public Education on May 11th is to adopt the proposed 
amendments to its accreditation standards relating to distance learning.  Accreditation standards 
are rules of this agency governing K-12 schools which have the force of law.  The Board 
endeavors to visit all of its rules on a five year review cycle basis.  We pay particular attention to 
those areas which are quickly evolving such as technology delivered instruction.  The proposed 
rule does not mention “Running Start” or “Dual Enrollment”.  The rule and the Distance Learning 
Task Force’s work and conclusions (which can be found on our web site at www.bpe.mt.gov) 
begin by defining terms which are mostly house keeping. They further require providers of 
distance learning to register with the Office of Public Instruction.   
 
The part of the notice rule which is causing the most concern to school districts, administrators, 
and students around the state is the requirement that teachers of distance, on-line, and 
technology delivered learning programs shall be licensed and endorsed in Montana in the area of 
instruction taught.  This requirement brings those that teach on-line under the very same 
requirements of those that teach in our schools.  If a teacher does not possess these 
qualifications there must be a facilitator on the receiving end who is licensed and endorsed in 
Montana in the area of instruction facilitated.    
 
It is also important to understand that the Running Start program that began with legislation in 
2001 provides that higher education may offer courses of instruction in the K-12 environment only 
to supplement education and potentially earn college credit but not supplant their high school 
courses of instruction.  Also dual enrollment is an issue that is currently being considered by both 
the Board of Public Education and the Office of the Commissioner of Higher Education.  Though it 
may be impacted by the proposed rule adoption, it is not currently the program being considered 
on May 11th. 
 
I cannot tell you at this time how the vote will go, but I do know that the Board strongly endorses 
and defends the profession of teaching through licensure.  The Board has consistently thwarted 
attempts to reduce teacher qualifications and teacher credentials.  If you have been following the 
federally mandated No Child Left Behind you will note that the federal government requires that 
not only teachers be licensed and endorsed but that they are “highly qualified”.  I believe that the 
Board of Public Education concurs with the concept that those who provide instruction to our 
children, whether in person or electronically, must never be waived from a high standard of 
quality.   
 
I hope you find this information useful.  If you have any further questions, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Steve Meloy   

 
From: Kristi Albertson [mailto:kalbertson@dailyinterlake.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, May 02, 2007 4:57 PM 



From: Gray, Karla [kgray@mt.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, May 15, 2007 4:15 PM 
To: Meloy, Steve 
Cc: Will, Carol; Patty Myers; millerk@havre.k12.mt.us; amclean89@hotmail.com 
Subject: RE: Civics 
-->  
Hi Steve and Friends, 
Thanks for the update.  I'm delighted to see a bigger picture look that I, 
as an "outsider" to the education world, can readily understand. 
  
My commitment to the civic mission of schools continues, and I expect 
to become more active as opportunities present themselves (or are 
created!!) both while I am still the Chief Justice and thereafter.  If I can 
be of any assistance to the Board, or any particular school district, in 
moving this mission along, I would be delighted to try to help.   
  
I'd still like to locate a couple of districts which might be willing to pilot 
the incorporation of all 3 levels of We, the People into their curriculum at 
no cost for the materials the first year, and relatively low cost and very 
effective training of the educators who would be utilizing the curriculum.  
Anaconda and Polson (because of your student Board members 
comments at the meeting I attended) spring to mind.  Kirk, I have no 
idea what the situation might be in Havre, and--if I read correctly--you're 
moving on to Bozeman.  Sad for Havre, I know, but certainly good for 
Bozeman, where I believe some of the schools may already use We, 
the People.   
  
As you would no doubt suspect, I know there are a variety of available 
curricula on this subject; "We" is the only one I'm familiar with.  One of 
the reasons I like it so much is that there would be many opportunities 
to include the basics of early American history, Indian Ed for All, 
citizenship training and current events, and the like into a more 
comprehensive learning experience.  I do realize these are not Board 
matters and that the Board must necessarily move slowly and 
deliberatively.   
Indeed, I am personally a very process-
oriented person.  At the same time, my entire career has been in a field 
where things move at glacial pace and, as I prepare to leave the Court, I 
hope to start directing more energy toward progress at a bit quicker a 
pace! 
  



In the meantime, I am speaking at the Freedom Shrine event at 
Monforton School on June 1, and believe I am on one or two segments 
of the programs for the fall MEA-MFT conference. 
  
Best of luck with all the important work you do!  And thanks for all that 
work as well! 
Karla 
Karla M. Gray 
Chief Justice 
Montana Supreme Court 
406-444-5490 
kgray@mt.gov 
  
 





 

The signs of music / Hearing-impaired choir shows off talent 
for future teachers 

 
 
 

By BETSY COHEN of the Missoulian  

With the poise of professional musicians, the choir from the Montana School for the Deaf 
and Blind commanded the Music Recital Hall stage at the University of Montana and 
wowed a Thursday morning crowd. 

A standing ovation followed the 90-minute show, after which the audience was gifted 
with an encore by “Expressions of Silence,” whose members are students in the sixth 
through 12th grades. 

Each member of the choir lives with a hearing impairment; some of the students are deaf 
and some are hard of hearing. 

No matter their audio challenges, the youth captivated the audience of UM music 
students - who are teachers-in-training - with a crisp execution of energetic and engaging 
choreography. 

Although the choir did not “sing” vocally, they “signed” expressively and danced to 
songs sung by the likes of Stevie Wonder and Alison Krauss. The result was a powerful 
and joyful concert that was equal parts dance and performance art. 

A quick review of the choir's résumé makes it clear why and how the young performers 
exude such confidence. 

Among its lengthy credits, Expressions of Silence has performed for the Montana 
Legislature, the Montana Council of Exceptional Children, at the Music Educators 
National Conference - and with the renowned Mormon Tabernacle Choir and the Oak 
Ridge Boys. 

In June, choir members pack their bags for Washington, D.C., where they will perform 
before the nation's leaders at the National Anthem Project's grand finale. 

“We are so thrilled and honored to have this choir perform for us,” said Mary Jane Belz, 
a UM professor who teaches music education. 

“I first came to know about this choir when I read about them in a national journal, and 
then I was fortunate to see them perform at the Music Educators National Conference in 



Salt Lake last year,” Belz said. “I couldn't believe they were from Montana, and I 
immediately invited them to come to UM to perform and work with my students.” 

Each year, Belz invites a wide variety of musical performers who have diverse abilities 
and come from diverse backgrounds to teach her students about the eclectic talents they 
will encounter when they become music teachers. 

Earlier in the week, Belz's students learned from four American Indian drummers and 
two dancers, and from Bonner first-graders who showed how they learned the names of 
every U.S. president - in order - through song. 

“My students, when they enter the greater world and become music educators, will teach 
everyone - they will have all kinds of children,” she said, “and one of my purposes in my 
methods class is to make my students aware of the diversity they will encounter in a 
classroom. 

“Today, we learned that a choir that doesn't sing makes music in other ways.” 

After the Thursday performance, the choir and its directors fielded questions from the 
audience. 

Jennifer Wasson and Dessica Wilson explained that during the performance, one of them 
keeps the beat and the other dances the routine with the performers, serving as a visual 
cue very much like a human metronome. 

Choir members explained that they could feel the pulsing beat of the bass through their 
feet. 

Tearra Donovan, a senior at the Montana School for the Deaf and Blind, urged the theater 
full of potential teachers not to ignore or give up on students who can't hear. 

Help them learn how to enjoy music, she said, “because we love to perform and it gives a 
sense of pride.” 

From the audience came shouts of praise: “You guys are outstanding! We had a blast!” 

Reporter Betsy Cohen can be reached at 523-5253 or at bcohen@missoulian.com 

 

Copyright © 2007 Missoulian 

 













Executive Secretary Report 
Thursday, July 12, 2007 
  
By: Steve Meloy/ Executive Secretary 
 
Summer is here and the Board is involved in many projects.  We have met with the 
Commissioner’s office to begin re-examining areas of interest and effort for alignment.  
We have also preliminarily met to begin Phase 2 of the distance learning work and have 
begun coordination with OPI on an assessment task force to continue identifying 
appropriate and meaningful assessments for all our school districts.  The K-College 
Workgroup will meet on July 25, 2007 and a preliminary planning meeting was held on 
Thursday, June 28.  The CSPAC crew is busy working with the licensure folk at OPI to 
begin the important review and modification process tied with Chapter 57.   
 
 
Board work continues to include but is not limited to: Implementing various pieces of 
global legislation from the ‘07 session; future of the NRT as well as assessments to 
inform instruction;  total review of Chapter 57; K-College Workgroup; Distance Learning 
Task Force Phase 1 follow-up and beginning Phase 2; Dual Enrollment-Credit work;  
Counsellorship Initiative; assessment alignment work;  MSDB coordination and 
oversight; MSDB strategic planning; previous Interim Committee work follow-up and 
monitoring the MQEC; CSPAC Assessment Study Group;  Pilot (Praxis II) testing 
efforts;  NCLB implications and future reauthorization of ESEA; work of the Montana 
Schools E-Learning Consortium and its future; Ed Forum meetings; Special Purpose 
Schools Task Force; Chapter 55 review process; PEPPS Review Advisory Panel;  BPE 
five-year plan; involvement with planning for NASBE’s annual meeting;  monitoring the 
Writing Assessment Consortia Project; writing implementation committee work; 
monitoring the Indian Education For All efforts;  High School Improvement Initiative; 
results of the Legislative Audit Committee on high school drop-out rates in Montana and 
data alignment between OCHE and OPI;  performance-based budgeting proposals and 
preparation of a template for the 2009 session; work on issues revolving around 
“alternative to our standards” requests; ongoing questions related to the bullying issue;  
financial education curricular concerns; school nutrition and physical education; civic 
education; site planning for the BPE in the next biennium; NASBE grant in student 
leadership;  special meetings of the BPE;  strategy development for the 2009 Legislative 
session; and the fielding of an increasing number of  calls from the public regarding 
various and current issues before the Board. 
 
Most of the other issues with which I have dealt have been brought to your attention by 
way of phone and e-mail correspondence. However, I have highlighted the following: 
 

• Continued work with LSD on fiscal responsibility processes for SB 152 
• Worked with Megan on modifications to our website 
• Attended all meetings of the Ed Forum 
• Filed distance learning rule with SOS 
• Continued work on the state’s broadband system 



• Worked with the DOA regarding recruitment and retention 
• Work in progress on developing performance evaluation documents for 

employees 
• Attended signing ceremony for full-time kindergarten 
• Continued discussions with Commissioner on office location prospects for the 

future 
• Wrote “counterpoint” article for GF Tribune regarding distance learning 
• Attended the Montana Educator’s Summit 
• Contacted NASBE regarding NASBE’s operational concerns by the BPE 
• Worked on a license denial appeal 
• Worked on a substantial and material non-performance issue 
• Worked on agenda for the National Association of Educational Executives 
• Participated with BPE and staff in special conference call meeting 
• Conducted 9 interviews for the soon to be vacated CSPAC position 
 
 

We have received continued comment from the field on two issues before the Board.  
Those include the future of the NRT and amendments to our distance learning rule.  
Hopefully these items will be resolved in the near future to enable districts to 
operationally plan for the coming school year.  Strategic planning is of current increased 
importance given the legislative interest in plans, alignment with OCHE, K-College 
Workgroup, and planning for the BPE commencement of a new five-year plan beginning 
in July of 2008. 

 
 
 
 



 
NASDTEC President’s Message 

July 2007 
Peter Donovan (MT) 

 
 
The Olympic spirit is alive and well in NASDTEC, as was witnessed at the 79th Annual 
Conference in Salt Lake City: Who Will Educate Our Children: An Olympic Challenge.  
The NASDTEC Annual Conference provided a unique opportunity for some of the best 
and brightest minds from across the nation to assemble and learn from each other in a 
collaborative environment about ongoing challenges and emerging issues in educator 
preparation, certification and licensure.     
 
From Governor Huntsman’s remarks at the beginning of the conference to the update on 
the NASDTEC Mobility Study at the conclusion, attendees experienced a variety of 
speakers and facilitators who led conversations on the “Olympic” challenges faced in 
teacher preparation and certification/licensure throughout the country.  I hope that your 
memories from the 79th Annual NASDTEC Conference in Salt Lake City in June are as 
wonderful as mine. 
 
During the business meeting at the conference, the NASDTEC membership adopted the 
following goals and objectives.  The Executive Board is looking forward to working with 
the NASDTEC membership to achieve these important goals and objectives:  
      
Goal #1:  Review the future administrative needs of the organization in light of 
established goals and objectives. 
 
 Objective:  To appoint a group of former NASDTEC presidents to review administrative 
needs and report their findings to the Executive Board by the February board meeting. 
 
Goal #2:  Increase the associate membership by 25% by 2010.  
 
Objective:  The Executive Board will develop a plan of action for increasing 
memberships and participation of associate members.  
 
 Goal #3: Use information from the Troops to Teachers Mobility Study to determine how 
the Interstate Agreement might be modified for the 2010-2015 edition, including the 
possibility of portability of Highly Qualified status among states.  
 
 Objective:  To assign this project to the Interstate Committee for completion. 
 
 Goal #4:  Provide national leadership in the areas of on-line teacher preparation, the 
credentialing of virtual school teachers, and on-line professional development for 
educators by consulting other national organizations with areas of particular expertise 
with the goal to develop guidelines and standards to present back to the membership. 
 



Objective:  To assign this project to the Professional Preparation and Continuing 
Development Committee for completion by the 2008 annual conference. 
 
 Goal #5:  Make the Clearinghouse and Knowledge Base databases even more efficient 
and effective for NASDTEC members. 
Objective:  To assign this project to the Technology Committee and Professional 
Practices for completion by the 2008 annual conference. 
 
 Goal #6:   Strengthen NASDTEC’s relationships and partnerships with other 
stakeholders interested in quality educator preparation and certification. 
 
Objective:  For members of NASDTEC’s Executive Board to meet and confer with other 
organizations such as AACTE, CCSSO and others to establish a relationship to support 
educator preparation and certification with a report to the 2008 annual conference. 
  
Future NASDTEC conferences:  Please mark your calendars and plan to attend these 
great upcoming NASDTEC conferences.  Carolyn Angelo, Chair, and the members of the 
Professional Practices Committee are busy planning the 11th NASDTEC Professional 
Practices Institute that is set for October 17-19, 2007 at the Doubletree Castle in Orlando, 
Florida.  Likewise, Kathy DeFelice, our new Vice President, is initiating the planning for 
the NASDTEC 80th Annual Conference on June 1-4, 2008 at the Providence Westin, in 
Providence, Rhode Island.       



Board of Public Education 
Strategic Planning Session Agenda 

(Open to Partners and Public) 
 

Front Street Learning Center 
815 Front Street 

Helena, MT 59601 
 

July 11, 2007 1:00 p.m. 
 

 
 
   Review Minutes of 2006 Planning Session 
 
   Review Legislative Template 
 
   2-Year Annual Calendar 
 
   Review BPE Bylaws 
 
   Committee Work 
 

Assessment Task Force 
    

Distance Learning Task Force Phase 2 
 
Alignment with Board of Regent’s Strategic Plan 

 
   Develop Performance Measures for 2007-2008 
 
   Adjourn 
 
    
 
 





Statistical Worksheet

Page 1 of 84

3283

4

9

18

13

44

76

21

15

23

17

32

24

25

21

28

Total

Unknown

60+

55 - 59

50 - 54

45 - 49

40 - 44

39

38

37

36

34

33

35

32

31

43

58

44

70

72

30

29

28

27

26

130

25

24

88

102

112

189

[4] Ages Of Examinees

23

22

20 245

35819

53418

70217

16616 21

75 %[C] Passing Percentage

Total 3283

303

164

926

962

Unknown

12

11

10

572

38

295

9

8

7

6 or below

[3] Highest Grade Completed

1995

2670

[B] Achieved scores high enough for a credential in your jurisdiction

[A] Completed the entire GED test battery ([1][A] + [1][B])

[2] Number Completed And Number Passed

23

1

Unknown

0

0

1

03237

Spanish Large PrintEnglish

0

0

0

140

13

39

7 311

3282

235919

Criteria

612

BrailleAudiotape

1

0

3

1

0

0

0

0

French

0

596

304

[C] Number of persons tested who have not yet 
taken all tests in the battery

[D] Subtotals

2337

[B] Number of persons who completed the battery in 
prior periods and were retested

[1] Number Tested

[A] Number of persons who completed the battery 
for the first time

Subtotals

MT          

12/31/2006

Addendum:

Center Number:

Jurisdiction:

Start Date:

End Date:

1/1/2006

Report Date: 2/2/2007



Statistical Worksheet

Page 2 of 84

[5] Reasons For Testing

[A] Qualify For Further Education

[B] Qualify For Employment

[C] Qualify For Military Enlistment

[A] Hispanic

[B] Alaskan Native / American Indian / First Nation / Autochtone

[C] Asian / Asiatique

[D] African American / African Canadian / Canadien African

[E] Native Hawaiian / Pacific Islander

[F] White

[G] Maxacno

[H] Puertorrqueño

[I] Cubano

[J] Centroamericano

[K] Sudamericano

[L] Dominicano

Number Of Active-Duty Personnel

[M] British / Britannique

[P] Other / Otro / Autre

[Q] Missing / Unknown

Total

[A] Requested For SLD And / OR ADHD Only

[B] Approved For SLD And / Or ADHD Only

[C] Requested For Physical Or Mental Impairment Only

[D] Approved For Physical Or Mental Impairment Only

[E] Requested For SLD And / Or ADHD And Physical Or Mental 
Impairment

[F] Approved For SLD And / Or ADHD And Physical Or Mental 
Impairment

*Provided With

0

[6] Military Personnel

1432

1658

274

176

631

11

50

20

2037

0

[8] Racial / Ethnic Background Of Examinees

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

34

324

3283

3

0

1

1

0

0

[G] Large Print With Extended Time

[7] Number Of Special Accommodations

[I] Extended Time

[H] Closed Circuit TV

[K] Signed Essay Or Video

[J] Audio Cassette

[M] Scribe

[L] Video Instructions

[P] Supervised Breaks

[O] Private Room

[N] Calculator

[R] Braille

[Q] Instruction Intrepreted

[S] Other

1

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

[A] Female

[B] Male 1779

3283

[C] Missing / Unknown 38

[9] Gender Of Examinees

1466

Total

Accommodations provided are not included in these totals unless they are associated with a specific test date.  That is, an accommodation is not 
included in these totals unless a valid test date is recorded on the Tracking Sheet, even though the accommodation was provided.  However, there 
are two exceptions.  An audio cassette or braille accommodation will also be reported as provided if the test format code so indicates.

*

[O] Other European / Autre Eurpoéen

[N] French / Français



Statistical Worksheet

Page 3 of 84

9

36

2

0

45 - 49

Total

32

2001

2001

4

[A] People Tested In Your Jurisdiction

4

[12] Number Of Credentials

15

35

34

1133

40 - 44

39

38

18

25

28

30

29

632 3740

14

68

363526

28

27

54

54

58

109

25

24

23

22

21

130

238

348

118

519

20

19

18

17

16

[14] Age Of Credential Recipients

[B] No

[A] Yes

[13] Additional Credentials

[B] United States, U.S. Territories, Insular Areas, And Freely Associated States

[A] Canadian Provinces And Territories

[11] Number Of Additional Testing Sites

[D] In Operation On December 31

[C] Opened During The Year

[B] Closed During The Year

[A] In Operation During Any Part Of The Year

[C] People Who Tested In Other Jurisdictions

2

[10] Number Of Testing Centers

1995

31

50 - 54

55 - 59

60+

Unknown

Total

12 24

11 8

8

[B] People Whose Tests Were Scored Through GEDTS

[B] Alaskan Native / American Indian / First Nation / Autochtone

[E] Native Hawaiian / Pacific Islander

[D] African American / African Canadian / Canadien African

[F] White

[16] Gender Of Credential Recipients

9

1418

[B] Male

[A] Female

[H] Puertorrqueño

[G] Mexacno

20

263

Total

107

5[C] Asian / Asiatique

[A] Hispanic

[C] Missing / Unknown

2001Total

19

0

0

160

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

[Q] Missing Unknown

[P] Other / Otro / Autre

[O] Other European / Autre Eurpoéen

[N] French / Français

[M] British / Britannique

[L] Dominicano

[K] Sudamericano

[J] Centroamericano

[I] Cubano

2001

20

1108

873

[15] Racial / Ethnic Background Of Credential Recipients

[C] If Yes, How Many



Demographic Statistical Report

Page 1 of 132

259 537

1601

Other

Personal Satisfaction

580

64

Role Model for Familiy

Public Assistance Requirement

193

73

Court Order

Early Release

Military Career

Military Entrance

142

275

[18] Level Of Education

2

267

Job Training

442

Employer Requirement

658

698

84

231

455

3192

1230 10

193

23

142

929

965

573

295

39

13

2

2

4

[19] Reason(s) For Testing

Enroll in Technical or Trade Program

Enter 2 - Year College

Enter 4 - Year College / University

Get First Job

Keep Current Job

Skills Certification

Get a Better Job

Total

No Response

Double Bubble

12

12+

10

11

8

9

6

7

4

5

None

K - 3

Double Bubble

97

1206

No Response

No

1898Yes

[16] GED Practice Tests

3201

0

Total

58

133

12+

12

316

444

11

10

454

444

9

8

428

434

7

6

421

427

5

4

423

423

3

2

[14] Years

3040English

433

208

1

0

3256

3

Total

Double Bubble

184

20

No Response

Other

9

0

Spanish

French

Hispanic

Total

Cubano

Centroamericano

Asian/Asiatique

Sudamericano

Puertorrqueño

Dominicano

British/Britannique

French/Français

White

African American/African Canadian

Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander

Alaskan Native/American Indian/First Nation

Other European/Autre Eurpoéen

No Response

Double Bubble

Mexacno

[15] Race And Ethnic Background

3170

33

237

0

0

0

0

2026

20

51

0

0

0

11

618

174

0

0

[13] Primary Language

3256Total

0

44

Double Bubble

No Response

3139

73

No

Yes

[12] Branch Of Service

Total

Double Bubble

72

0

1

0

0

0

70

No Response

Coast Guard

Navy

Marines

Army

1

[11] Status

Air Force

73

0

2

[11] Currently In Military

4

38

29

Total

Double Bubble

No Response

Reserves

National Guard

Active Duty

3286Total

0Double Bubble

29

1474

No Response

Female

1783Male

[9] Gender

3264Total

0Double Bubble

41

3071

152

No Response

No

Yes

6/18/2007Report Date:

1/1/2006

End Date:

Start Date:

Jurisdiction:

Center Number:

Addendum:

12/31/2006

MT          

[1] First Time Tested

Other/Autre 0



Demographic Statistical Report

Page 2 of 132

Friend, neighbor, or family member

Classmate

School guidance counselor or teacher

[26] First Learn About The GED Tests

1728

317

868

Television

Magazine

Newspaper

Brochure, pamphlet, or poster

Employer

Employment counselor

Education agency

Jail or prison official

Probation or parole officer

Military recruiting officer

Social worker

Other

87

42

25

88

152

112

47

133

185

232

120

126

712

Radio

6

851

Part-time Student

Full-time Student

Retired

157

Homemaker, Family Caregiver 386

231

111

716

Unemployed By Choice

Permanent Disability

793

35

Employed Full-time

Employed Part-time

[20] Status

Seeking Employment

Health Facility

No Response

11 to 25 miles

51 to 100 miles

No Response

Receiving Public Assistance

Emancipated Minor

Single Parent

1 to 10 miles

26 to 50 miles

More than 100 miles

Double Bubble

Double Bubble

108

200113

222

3152

411

332

350

2104

13

125

0

238

307

235

2021

1

345

Waited 1 week to 1 month

Yes

Total

Waited 1 week

Waited longer than 1 month

Total

Yes

No

No Response

Double Bubble

Total

$0

$1 to #3,000

$3,001 to $5,000

$5,001 to $7,500

$7,5001 to $10,000

[21] Total Income

Correctional Facility

[24] Wait To Test

[22] Status

More than $40,000

No Response

Double Bubble

Total

$10,001 to $15,000

$15,001 to $20,000

$25,001 to $30,000

$30,001 $40,000 32

65

3109

883

2168

116

1

3168

653

976

274

199

162

396

[25] Test Preparation Payment

[23] Travel

25

401

1

3123

172

125



Demographic Statistical Report

Page 3 of 132

282

1263

423

1682

87

640

1092

98

221

178

369

1254

279

Chemistry

Earth Science

Genetics

General Science

Physical Science

Zoology/Botany

Physics

Behavioral Science

Economics

Civics

Geography

[30] Courses

Political Science

History

World History

Algebra I

Algebra II

Business Math

Calculus

General Math

Geometry

Trigonometry

252

1570

282

1835

684

291

52

1439

761

98

33

1679

Other

Biology

French

German

English

Latin

0

119

0

0

Literature

English Literature

Spanish

Grammar/Composition

1551

0

727

World Literature

156

88

267

33

542

67

1

38

406

2

4

NONE

Self-Taught

Literacy Volunteer Program

Employment and/or Training Program

Private Tutor

Migrant Worker/HEP Program

Job Corps

Church Program (Faith-based)

Homeless Program

Military Installation

GED Option

Army "GED Plus"

Project Challenge

Community Based Organization

596

114

693

3

15

10

200

17

281

671

13

116

59

333

Workplace Literacy Program

Library

Family Literacy

Correctional Facility

Official Practice Tests

Homeschooling Instead of K-12

Home Study

Charter School

Correspondence School

Distance Learning

Internet/Computer

Television

Community College Adult Education Class

Public School Adult Education Class

[28] Preparation

7

13

78

A

52

C

35

E

4

205

46

51

62

83

51

146 One year or less

92 Three years

32

62

139 259

165 205

7

74

151 280

97 137 8

19

124 233

164 299

7

E

63One year or less

70Three years

10

E

177

E

71

33

7

7

[29][A] English Composition

One year or less

B

58

D

21Four years or more

A

96

58

15

49

D

[29][C] Social Studies

144 Two years

39 Four years or more

B C

248 314

54

Two years

Three years

147 262

41 44

B C

207 333

66 81

A

[29][B] English Literature

58Two years

42Four years or more

D

[29][D] Science

149

57

20

14

63

125196

3957

37

20

129

B

162

252

B

59

214

110

C

49

17363

6144

205

C

173

384

One year or less

67

Three years

Two years

[29][E] Mathematics

Four years or more

Two years

One year or less

Four years or more

Three years

179

D

85

197

D

21

200

157

278

16055

A

58

62

A

45

78

59 98

E



Demographic Statistical Report

Page 4 of 132

Needed money to help out at home

Poor grades

407

278

221

114

191

313

659

294

[31] Reasons For Not Completing

Got pregnant/made someone pregnant

Personal/family illness

Family moved too often

Got married

Job took too much time

Got a job

Was needed at home to care for family members

1016

1080

1333

388

221

1323

95

258

260

587

963

339

502

80

132

412

360

464

1032

267

529

220

309

72

251

245

667

623

494

557

434

118

489

Had emotional Problems

Too old for my grade

Other family members did not complete high school

Didn't have enough money to go to school

Lacked a good place to study at home

Parents did not support my education

Did not feel part of the school

Had problems with drugs

Had problems with alcohol

Did not get along with teachers

Did not get along with other students

Did not feel safe at school

Had problems with the law/police

Poor test scores

School work was too hard

Had trouble with reading

Had trouble with math

Was bored

Did not like school

Was absent too many times

Had trouble understanding the English language

Poor study habits

773

School work was too easy

Could not adjust to school routine

Teachers did not help me enough

School did not offer the courses I wanted

Poor teaching

Couldn't work and study at the same time

Got suspended/expelled

Wasn't happy in school

School official told me to leave

Social life was more important than school work

Not enough vocational/technical courses







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL EDUCATION REPORT TO THE  
BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 

 
 
 

July 2007 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Linda McCulloch 
Superintendent 

Office of Public Instruction 
OPISupt@mt.gov

   
 PO Box 202501, Helena, MT  59620-2501



Table of Contents 
 

Part 1- Students Served................................................................................................ 1 

Special Education Child Count and Student Enrollment...................................................................1 
Special Education Child Count Longitudinal Data - Students Ages 3-21...........................................1

Student Enrollment Longitudinal Data - Grades Pre-Kindergarten Through 12……………………….3 
Proportion of All Students Enrolled in Public Schools Who are Special Education ...........................3 
National Enrollment Prevalence of Children Served Under IDEA, Part B..........................................4

 
    Student Identification by Disability…………………………………………………………………………..5 

Disabilities by Percentage of Total Number of Students with Disabilities ..........................................5 
Part 2 - Funding............................................................................................................. 6 

State Special Education Appropriation for 2006-2007 School Year .................................................6 
State Entitlement for 2006-2007 School Year ....................................................................................6 

Growth in Reimbursement of Disproportionate Costs ......................................................................7 
Total $ Amount for Disproportionate Reimbursement by Year...........................................................7 
Number of School Districts Receiving Reimbursement for Disproportionate Costs...........................7 

Instructional Block Grants and Related Services Block Grants .......................................................8 
Instructional Block Grant Per Student Allocation ...............................................................................8 
Related Services Block Grant Per Student Allocation........................................................................8 

Expenditures of State, Federal, and Local Funds Comparison by Year ..........................................9 
Comparison by School Years 1990 through 2006..............................................................................9 
Percentages of State, Federal and Local Funds Covering Total Costs of Special Education .........11 

The General Fund ................................................................................................................................12 
Comparison Between State Share of Expenditures for Special Education Students and State Share 
of Budget for All Students.................................................................................................................12 

Per Student Expenditure Comparisons at the District Level ..........................................................13 
 Year-to-year variability of district special education expenditures…………………………………..13 
 Special Education Expenditures per Student FY 2006……………………………………………….14 
    Medicaid…………………………………………………………………………………………………………14 
 FY '06 Medicaid Payments to Schools…………………………………………………………………15 
 Expenditures of Medicaid Reimbursements District F FY 2006……………………………………..16 
 Expenditures of Medicaid Reimbursements District G FY 2006……………………………………..16 

Part 3 - Accountability ................................................................................................ 18 

Montana’s State Performance Plan....................................................................................................18 
Indicator 1: Percent of youth with IEPs graduating from high school with a regular diploma 
compared to percent of all youth in the state graduating with a regular diploma. ............................18 
Indicator 2:  Percent of youth with IEPs dropping out of high school compared to the percent of all 
youth in the state dropping out of high school. .................................................................................19 
Indicator 3:  Participation and performance of children with disabilities on statewide assessments.
..........................................................................................................................................................21 

i 



Indicator 4:  Rates of suspension and expulsion. ...........................................................................22 
Indicator 5:  Percent of children with IEPs, aged 6 through 21, in less restrictive and more 
restrictive educational environments. ...............................................................................................24 
Indicator 6:  Percent of preschool children with IEPs who received special education and related 
services in settings with typically developing peers. ......................................................................245 
Indicator 7 (New Indicator): Percent of preschool children with IEPs who demonstrate improved 
positive social-emotional skills, acquisition and use of knowledge and skills (including early 
language/communication and early literacy), and use of appropriate behaviors to meet their needs.
..........................................................................................................................................................26 
Indicator 8 (New Indicator):  Percent of parents with a child receiving special education services 
who report that schools facilitated parent involvement as a means of improving services and results 
for children with disabilities. ..............................................................................................................27 
Indicator 9 (New Indicator):  Percent of districts with disproportionate representation of racial and 
ethnic groups in special education and related services that is the result of inappropriate 
identification. .....................................................................................................................................28 
Indicator 10 (New Indicator):  Percent of districts with disproportionate representation of racial 
and ethnic groups in specific disability categories that is the result of inappropriate identification..28 
Indicator 11 (New Indicator):  Percent of children with parental consent to evaluate, who were 
evaluated and eligibility determined within 60 days (or state-established timeline). ........................29 
Indicator 12:  Percent of children referred by Part C, prior to age 3, who are found eligible for Part 
B, and who have an IEP developed and implemented by their third birthdays. ...............................29 
Indicator 13 (New Indicator):  Percent of youth aged 16 and above with an IEP that includes 
coordinated, measurable, annual IEP goals and transition services that will reasonably enable the 
student to meet the post-secondary goals........................................................................................29 
Indicator 14 (New Indicator):  Percent of youth who had IEPs, are no longer in secondary school 
and who have been competitively employed, enrolled in some type of post-secondary school, or 
both, within one year of leaving high school.....................................................................................30 
Indicator 15:  General supervision system (including monitoring, complaints, hearings, etc.) 
identifies and corrects noncompliance as soon as possible, but in no case later than one year from 
identification......................................................................................................................................30 
Indicator 16:  Percent of signed written complaints with reports issued that were resolved within 
60-day timeline or a timeline extended for exceptional circumstances with respect to a particular 
complaint. .........................................................................................................................................31 
Indicator 17:  Percent of fully adjudicated due process hearing requests that were fully adjudicated 
within the 45-day timeline or a timeline that is properly extended by the hearing officer at the 
request of either party.......................................................................................................................31 
Indicator 18 (New Indicator):  Percent of hearing requests that went to resolution sessions that 
were resolved through resolution session settlement agreements. .................................................31 
Indicator 19:  Percent of mediations held that resulted in mediation agreements. .........................31 
Indicator 20:  State-reported data (618 and State Performance Plan and Annual Performance 
Report) are timely and accurate. ......................................................................................................31 

 
 

 



 
 

Part 1- Students Served 
 
Special Education Child Count and Student Enrollment 
 
Public schools must make available special education and related services to all IDEA-
eligible (Individuals with Disabilities Education Act) students with disabilities beginning 
at age three and through age 18.  Services to students, ages 19, 20, and 21, are 
permissive. That is, the decision to serve 19, 20 and 21-year-old students is determined 
by the policies of the school district board of trustees [20-5-101(3), Montana Code 
Annotated (MCA), and Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.16.3122].   
 
Students with disabilities receive a wide range of services, including individualized 
instruction, assistive technology, and related services such as speech-language 
therapy, occupational therapy, physical therapy and/or transition services. Both the type 
and the extent of services a student receives are individually determined based on the 
educational needs of the student. 
 
 

 
 

16,500

17,000

17,500

18,000

18,500

19,000

19,500

20,000

Child Count  17,882  17,679  18,364  18,600  18,735 18,797 19,039 19,313 19,262 19,269 19,466  19,515  19,259 18,557 

1993-
94

1994-
95

1995-
96

1996-
97

1997-
98

1998-
99

1999-
00

2000-
01

2001-
02

2002-
03

2003-
04

2004-
05

2005-
06

2006-
07

Special Education Child Count Longitudinal Data
Students Ages 3-21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This is a count of students with disabilities who have a valid Individualized Education Program (IEP) in accordance with IDEA and are 
receiving services indicated on the IEP on the first school day in December.  The count includes students who are enrolled in public 
schools, publicly funded schools, residential treatment facilities that contract with the OPI to provide services to their students who 
are Montana residents, and students who are in private or home schools and are receiving services from a public school in 
accordance with a Services Plan.   
 

Source: Child Count Data Files (Opihlnntprd3/Access/Division/Speical Education/Child Count/ChildCount91-01 and 
Access/Division/SpecialEducation/SQLCC/tblcc Child Count 2002-2007

 

 1  



 
Analysis of the December 1, 2006, Child Count data (term used for the collection of student 
special education data) shows there was a decrease of 702 students from the previous 
year with the most significant decreases occurring in the speech-language impairment and 
learning disabilities categories.  Thirty–five percent of the decrease occurred in grades K-3.  
Districts reported the following reasons for the decrease: implementation of interventions in 
general education resulting in fewer referrals to special education; student progress 
reviews that identified students no longer in need of special education instruction and so 
exited from special education services; and decreases in student enrollment.  Analysis of 
the data also showed a significant decrease in the count of students reported in the 
disability category of emotional disturbance.  Factors affecting the decrease include 
implementation of positive behavioral supports in general education and the positive effects 
of the implementation of over 100 Comprehensive School and Community Treatment 
Services (CSCT) programs in schools across the state.  Students are not required to be 
eligible for special education services to receive CSCT services. 
 
The disability category showing the most significant increase (9.09%) is Autism.  This is 
reflective of what is occurring nationwide.  Factors affecting this are the increase in 
numbers of students previously identified as having Autism and moving into Montana, 
as well as an increase in knowledge of how to more effectively identify children who 
meet the criteria for Autism. 
 
Montana’s Child Count (term used for the collection of student special education data) grew 
steadily from 1996 through 2001.  From 2001 to present, the count has leveled off. 
 
In contrast, Montana’s public school enrollment has shown a steady decline since 1996.  
Because of declining enrollment at the same time special education Child Count has either 
grown, or in recent years remained steady, the proportion of students served by special 
education has increased.  
 
 
 
 
  
 
Student Enrollment Longitudinal Data - Grades Pre-Kindergarten Through 12

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2  



 

 3  

 
 

 
 
 
Proportion of All Students Enrolled in Public Schools Who are Special Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

130,000

135,000

140,000

145,000

150,000

155,000

160,000

165,000

170,000

Student Enrollment  163,02  164,34  165,54  164,62  162,33  159,98  157,55  154,87  151,94  149,99  148,35  146,70  145,41 144,41

1993-
94

1994-
95

1995-
96

1996-
97

1997-
98

1998-
99

1999-
00

2000-
01

2001-
02

2002-
03

2003-
04

2004-
05

2005-
06

2006-
07

Student Enrollment Longitudinal Data 
G

 
 

Source:  Montana Public School Enrollment Data, (Published yearly by the OPI) 

rades Pre-Kindergarten 
through 12

10.0%

10.5%

11.0%

11.5%

12.0%

12.5%

13.0%

13.5%

% of Sp Ed Students 11.0% 10.8% 11.1% 11.3% 11.5% 11.7% 12.1% 12.5% 12.7% 12.8% 13.1% 13.3% 13.2% 12.8%

1993-
94

1994-
95

1995-
96

1996-
97

1997-
98

1998-
99

1999-
00

2000-
01

2001-
02

2002-
03

2003-
04

2004-
05

2005-
06

2006-
07

Proportion of All Students Enrolled 
in Public Schools Who are 
Special Education 

NOTE:  Percentage is calculated by dividing the special education student count for the year by the total student enrollment 
for the same year. 



 

 4  

National Percentage of Children Served Under IDEA, Part B, During 2003-04 School Year 
National Enrollment Prevalence of Children Served Under IDEA, Part B 

Montana ranks below the mean in the percentage of students served under IDEA according to 
the Office of Special Education Programs, U.S. Department of Education. 

 

10.49%
10.87%

11.28%
11.50%
11.67%
11.75%
11.88%
12.16%
12.40%
12.61%
12.65%
12.97%
12.98%
13.03%
13.30%
13.64%
13.77%
13.83%
13.87%
13.92%
13.95%
13.96%
14.13%
14.15%
14.17%

14.59%
14.61%
14.70%
14.94%
15.10%
15.16%
15.31%
15.33%
15.39%
15.45%
15.70%
15.78%
15.79%
15.84%
15.85%
15.95%
16.00%
16.00%

16.60%
17.15%
17.50%
17.65%
17.98%

18.90%
20.15%

14.48%1

Rhode Island
Maine
West Virginia
New Jersey
District of Columbia
Indiana
Massachusetts
Wyoming
Nebraska
New York
South Carolina
Kentucky
Missouri
New Mexico
Delaw are
Pennsylvania
Iowa
Illinois
New Hampshire
Florida
Oklahoma
Wisconsin
Arkansas
North Dakota
South Dakota
Virginia
Ohio
Louisiana
Vermont
Oregon
North Carolina
Kansas
Mississippi
Michigan
Minnesota
Alaska
Montana
Tennessee
Maryland
Alabama
Connecticut
Georgia
Hawaii
Washington
Utah
Nevada
Texas
Arizona
Idaho
Colorado
California

Mean 
 
 
Montana 

Median

National 
Enrollment 

Prevalence of 
Children Served 
Under IDEA, Part 

B, During the 
2004-2005 School 

Year. 

Mean is the average 
enrollment prevalence 
rate (14.49%).   
 
Median is the middle 
point of the chart. 
 

Source:  U.S. Office of Special Education Programs (IDEAdata.org) Other Data Products/Part B Trend Data Files/Table B1, Number and 
Percent of Population Served (Ages 3-21), by State: 1977 through 2005. 



 

 

Student Identification by Disability 
Disabilities by Percentage of Total Number of Students with Disabilities  

DISABILITY ABBREVIATIONS and Student Count  
for the 2006-07 School Year 

 
LD Learning Disability - 8,375 
SL Speech-Language Impairment - 4,534 
OH Other Health Impairment - 1,695 
CD Cognitive Delay - 1,014 
ED Emotional Disturbance - 949 
CW/DD Child with Disabilities/Developmental Delay - 651 
Other   Total - 1,339 

MD Multiple Disabilities - 579 
AU Autism - 372 
HI Hearing Impairment - 145 
OI Orthopedic Impairment - 70 
TB Traumatic Brain Injury - 69 
VI Visual Impairment - 65 
DE Deafness - 37 
DB Deaf-Blindness - 2 

The categories of Learning Disability and Speech-Language Impairment represent almost 
three-quarters of all students receiving special education services (LD=46%; SL=24%).  The 
number of students identified under the categories of Learning Disability and Speech-
Language Impairment decreased by 471 and 278 respectively.  This decrease is the result of 
several large districts in Montana implementing general education interventions, including 
scientifically based reading programs, that reduced the number of students referred for 
special education.  
 Disabilities by Percentage of Total Number of 

Students with Disabilities – 2006-2007 School Year A U.S. Department of Education, 
Office of Special Education 
Programs, policy letter issued in 
the early 1990s and subsequent 
federal regulations finalized in 
March of 1999 listing attention 
deficit disorder/attention deficit 
hyperactivity disorder in the 
definition for Other Health 
Impairment (OH) have resulted in a 
dramatic increase in this disability 
category. The number of students 
in Montana identified as OH grew 
from 177 students reported in FY 
‘90 to 1,695 students reported in 
FY ‘07.   

LD
46%

SL
24%

OH
9%

CD
5%

ED
5%

CW/DD
4%

Other
7%

 
The number of students identified 
as having Autism (AU) has also 
increased substantially over the 
last 10 years.  While Autism is 
considered a low-incidence 
disability category, the cost to 
address the needs of a child with 
Autism is high.   In the first year 
that students were reported under 
Autism in Montana (FY ‘92), two 
students were reported.  
Subsequent years have seen 
steady increase with the most 
recent count (FY '07) at 372 students re
 
The Montana Administrative Rule that d
revised and renamed to fit the feder
implemented on October 28, 2005.  
developmental delay after that date,
identified under CW will continue to 
(turn 6 years old) or are identified un
Team.  Both disability categories (C
Source:  Special Education Child Count conducted on December 1, 2006 
Opihlnntprd3\Access\Division\SpecialEducation\SQLCC\tblcc Child Count 2007.
5  

ported.   

efines the criteria for Child with Disabilities (CW) was 
al criteria for Developmental Delay (DD) and 
 Any student, age 3 through 5, identified with a 
 must be reported under DD.  Students previously 
be reported under that category until they age out 
der another disability category by the Child Study 

W and DD) will be combined for reporting purposes. 



 

 6  

Part 2 - Funding 
 
State Special Education Appropriation for 2006-2007 School Year 
 
Montana's special education funding structure distributes state appropriations in 
accordance with 20-9-321, MCA, based on a combination of school enrollment (not 
special education child count) and expenditures.  Seventy percent of the appropriation 
is distributed through block grants (instructional block grants and related services block 
grants), which are based on enrollment. Twenty-five percent is distributed through 
reimbursement for disproportionate costs, which is based on expenditures.  The 
remaining 5 percent is distributed to special education cooperatives to cover costs 
related to travel and administration.  For FY '07, the Montana Legislature had increased 
the state special education appropriation by approximately $1 million.   The following 
represents the breakouts for FY ‘07. 
 
 
 
 
 

Instructional Block 
Grant
52%

Related Services 
Block Grant

18%

Disproportionate 
Reimbursement

25%

Cooperative 
Travel

2%

Cooperative 
Administration

3%
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       State Entitlement for 2006-2007 School Year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
State Entitlement for 2006-2007 School Year 

Instructional Block Grant $20,664,594 
Related Services Block Grant $6,887,717 
Disproportionate Reimbursement $9,835,335 
Cooperative Administration $1,180,240 
Cooperative Travel $786,827 

TOTAL $39,354,713 

 
 
 

NOTE: The total payment to schools is less than the total appropriation.  A small amount of the appropriation is withheld to compensate for 
adjustments to ANB.  
 
Source: Special Education Summary FY2006-07 (prd\MAEFAIRS\MAEFAIRS.ade, rptSpecialEducationSummary, dated 7/27/2006) 



 

 7  

Growth in Reimbursement of Disproportionate Costs 
 
The proportion of the total state appropriation distributed in the form of reimbursement 
for disproportionate costs grew both in total dollars and in the number of districts 
receiving reimbursement for disproportionate costs through FY ‘01.  The funding for 
disproportionate reimbursement was revised in FY ‘02 to fix the proportion of funds 
distributed under reimbursement for disproportionate costs and shift funding back to 
instructional and related services block grants.   Today, any increase in funds 
distributed for purposes of reimbursement of disproportionate costs is due to an 
increase in overall appropriations for special education. 
Total $ Amount for Disproportionate Reimbursement by Year 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4,368,831

4,990,897

5,579,281

6,752,300

7,718,300

8,379,248
8,478,250

8,721,910
8,723,160

9,108,060
9,620,281

9,835,335

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

9,000,000

10,000,000 Total $ Amount for Disproportionate 
Reimbursement by Year

 1996   1997   1998   1999   2000   2001   2002   2003   2004   2005   2006  2007

 
Number of School Districts Receiving Reimbursement for Disproportionate Costs 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

147

249
268

279

322
346

307
297 293

282 290 283

100

150

200

250

300

350

400 Number of School Districts Receiving 
Reimbursement for Disproportionate Costs

  1996   1997   1998   1999   2000   2001   2002   2003   2004  2005   2006   2007

 
 Source: Special Education Summary FY2006-07 (prd\MAEFAIRS\MAEFAIRS.ade, rptSpecialEducationSummary, dated 7/27/2006) 



 

 8  

Source: Special Education Summary FY2006-07 (prd\MAEFAIRS\MAEFAIRS.ade, rptSpecialEducationSummary, dated 7/27/2006) 

Instructional Block Grants and Related Services Block Grants 
 
With the 25 percent limit on the proportion of funds distributed in the form of 
reimbursement for disproportionate costs, the block grant rates (per student 
expenditure) are no longer declining and are instead increasing along with increases in 
state appropriations.  This will benefit both schools and special education cooperatives.  
State special education cooperatives are significantly affected since they are not eligible 
for reimbursement for disproportionate costs and the related services block grant is the 
primary source of funding.  This shift is supporting the structure of the funding model’s 
emphasis on block grant distribution of funds. 
Instructional Block Grant Per Student Allocation 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Related Services Block Grant Per Student Allocation 
 

30

32

34

36

38

40

42

44

46

48

122.73 118.89

138.71
143.32

116.25111.73115.36 117.13 115.33120.94 122.67
129.65

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

1     1996   1997 6  2007

Instructional Block Grant 
Per Student Allocation

 1998  1999  2000  2001   2002  2003  2004   2005  200

43.68

38.88 38.4

47.77

3 38.8 39.04

35.43

38.44

40.31 40.89

43.21

46.23

   1996  1997  1998  1999   2000   2001  2002  2003   2004  2005  2006  2007

Related Services Block Grant 
Per Student Allocation



 9

Expenditures of State, Federal, and Local Funds Comparison by Year 

0

10,000,000

20,000,000

30,000,000

40,000,000

50,000,000

60,000,000

70,000,000

80,000,000

90,000,000

100,000,000

110,000,000

Totals 40,939,452 42,333,419 48,785,181 52,788,381 57,109,584 60,979,741 62,340,088 65,502,661 68,580,594 71,278,260 75,222,537 78,021,409 81,871,671 87,223,792 93,896,241 99,541,909 105,348,747

Local $$ 2,916,889 3,949,067 9,946,202 12,472,401 16,221,437 19,188,382 21,281,834 24,347,590 26,348,507 27,305,512 28,523,786 29,649,483 31,306,722 30,800,967 32,679,138 33,699,876 36,070,111

Federal $$ 4,660,917 5,050,519 5,993,182 7,010,146 7,830,884 8,363,021 8,072,103 8,473,920 9,799,408 11,452,352 12,798,901 14,459,002 16,654,650 21,539,091 26,317,079 29,403,927 30,782,809

State $$ 33,361,646 33,333,833 32,845,797 33,305,834 33,057,263 33,428,338 32,986,151 32,681,151 32,432,679 32,520,396 33,899,850 33,912,924 33,910,299 34,883,734 34,900,024 36,438,106 38,495,827

1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06

Comparison by School Years 1990 through 2005 

 NOTE: This table may differ from previously released versions.  Amounts are changed to reflect adjustments to trustees’ financial summaries submitted by school districts.   
 
Source:  State - Special education payment amount provided by OPI accounting, which does not include reversion; Federal - Expenditures provided by OPI accounting (SABHRS year-end 
report); Local - Expenditures from board of trustees’ financial summaries for special education allowable costs are reduced by the state payment amount to come up with the local amount.    

Comparison by School Years 1990 through 2006      

Percentage Increase Over 
Base Year (1990) of Local 
Expenditures 

241% 

328%
456%

558%

Base   35% 

630%
735%

803%

836% 
878%

916%
973%

1,020% 

956%

1,055% 

1137% 

 

  

Local 

Federal 

State 



 

 10  

Federal 
The growth in expenditures for special education has become an issue of national 
significance. On a national level, attention has been focused on the proportion of federal 
support for special education. The most recent information (November 2005) we have 
on the federal share of special education costs (national average) is 18.6 percent of the 
national average per pupil expenditure (Senate Democratic Appropriations Committee). 
Although this is a greater proportion of the national average per pupil expenditure than 
in the past, the proportion remains less than one-half the 40 percent level promised by 
Congress when the special education laws were first passed in the mid 1970s. If 
Congress were to fund special education at 40 percent of the national average per pupil 
expenditure, the level of funding would cover between 50 and 60 percent of Montana’s 
special education allowable costs. This is due to relatively lower costs for special 
education in Montana, and the way the national average per pupil expenditure is 
calculated.  
 
In Montana, approximately $105.3 million were spent on special education in FY ‘06.  
This is a significant increase from FY ‘90 when approximately $41 million of state, 
federal and local funds were spent on special education.  Much of this increase can be 
attributed to inflation and an increase in the number of students served by special 
education. In FY ‘06, approximately $30.8 million of the $105.3 million Montana spent 
on special education came from federal revenue sources (approximately 31 percent). 
 
State 
State appropriations for special education have fallen far short of the growth in costs.    
During a period of increased costs, coupled with flat state funding throughout the 1990s, 
the state share of the total costs of special education has slipped from approximately 
81.5 percent in FY ‘90 to approximately 37 percent in FY ‘06.   
 
Local 
The greatest share of funding for increased costs of special education has come from 
the local general fund budgets. Local school districts have absorbed the increase in 
costs of special education by increasing their contribution from approximately $3 million 
in FY ‘90 to approximately $36 million for FY ‘06. This represents an increase of over 
1,100 percent in local district contribution for special education.  In FY ‘03, for the first 
time since FY ‘90, the local expenditures for special education funding decreased.  This 
likely occurred because state funding increased slightly (3 percent) and federal funding 
increased by 29 percent.  However, in FY ‘04, state funding leveled off and local 
expenditures again saw an increase. In FY '05 and FY '06, state funding increased; 
however, local expenditures also increased with FY '06 seeing an increase of 7 percent.   
 
For purposes of this discussion, “local funds” means special education expenditures 
from the district general fund that are above the amount specifically earmarked for 
special education. The revenue source for these “local funds” includes both state base 
aid and local revenues. These “local funds” are generally perceived as local because 
they are drawn out of the general fund budget and would have otherwise been available 
for general education. This shift in the allocation of local funds has been a serious 
concern for schools and parents and has, for a number of years, created an atmosphere 
of competition for dollars.   



 

 11  

 
Percentages of State, Federal and Local Funds Covering Total Costs of Special Education 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

State Share 81.49% 78.74% 67.33% 63.09% 57.88% 54.82% 52.91% 49.89% 47.29% 45.62% 45.07% 43.47% 41.42% 39.99% 37.17% 36.61% 36.54%

Federal Share 11.38% 11.93% 12.28% 13.28% 13.71% 13.71% 12.95% 12.94% 14.29% 16.07% 17.01% 18.53% 20.34% 24.69% 28.03% 29.54% 30.92%

Local Share 7.12% 9.33% 20.39% 23.63% 28.40% 31.47% 34.14% 37.17% 38.42% 38.31% 37.92% 38.00% 38.24% 35.31% 34.80% 33.85% 36.24%

1989-
90

1990-
91

1991-
92

1992-
93

1993-
94

1994-
95

1995-
96

1996-
97

1997-
98

1998-
99

1999-
00

2000-
01

2001-
02

2002-
03

2003-
04

2004-
05

2005-
06

Percentages of State, Federal and Local 
Funds Covering Total Costs of Special 

Education 

 
 
Over the years, the relative proportion of state, federal, and "local" funds covering the 
costs of special education has changed dramatically. State funding has remained 
relatively constant.  Since FY '90, local districts have provided sizable increases in their 
contributions from "local funds."  Beginning in FY 2000, federal funds have also 
increased substantially.  As a result, by FY '06 the proportion of special education 
expenditures from state, federal and "local" funds is nearly equal.   
 



 

 12  

The General Fund 
 
Another way to consider the impact of state funding of special education is to compare the 
percentage of state support for the school district general fund budget with the percentage 
of special education expenditures from earmarked state special education funds.  
 
The percentage of special education expenditures in the general fund, coming from 
earmarked funds for special education, has slipped from approximately 89 percent in FY 
’91 to approximately 52 percent in FY ’06. In the meantime, the state support of the 
general fund budget for all students has slipped from approximately 71 percent in FY ’91 
to approximately 61 percent in FY ’06.  At one time, the state share of special education 
general fund expenditures was 18 percent higher than the state share of the general fund 
budget for general education.  By FY ’06, the state share of special education 
expenditures was 9 percent lower than the state share of the general fund budget for 
general education. 

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

Series1 71.4% 69.5% 67.3% 67.2% 66.7% 65.4% 64.4% 63.0% 62.0% 62.9% 63.5% 61.6% 60.9% 60.5% 60.0% 60.6%

Series2 89.4% 76.8% 72.8% 67.1% 63.5% 60.8% 57.3% 55.2% 54.4% 54.3% 53.1% 52.3% 53.1% 51.6% 51.95% 51.63%

1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06

Comparison Between State Share of Expenditures for Special 
Education Students and State Share of Budget for All Students

State Share of Budget for All Students

 

State Share of Sp Ed  
Expenditures for Sp Ed Students 

Comparison Between State Share of Expenditures for Special Education Students and State Share of Budget for All Students 
This chart is provided for the purpose of illustration. The comparison is between special 
education expenditures for special education students and general fund budgets for all 
students.   
 
The portion of the budget for all students that is not state share is comprised of local 
revenues (property taxes, non-levy revenues, and reappropriated monies). The portion of 
the expenditures for special education students refers only to earmarked state 
appropriations. 

 
 
 
 



 

 13  

Per Student Expenditure Comparisons at the District Level 
 

 
The need for public school districts to redirect "local funds" to cover the cost of special 
education presents a significant challenge to districts.  However, another dimension of 
the challenge public schools face when they budget for special education is the 
relatively unpredictable nature of special education costs, particularly for small districts. 
 
Significant variation in special education expenditures exists between districts of similar 
size.  Furthermore, significant variation in special education expenditures exists from 
year-to-year within the same district.  The reasons for this variability are many.  
Differences in salary for personnel, proportion of students identified as eligible for 
special education, concentrations of group homes in a community, and the costs of 
serving students with significant educational needs who enroll and later disenroll are 
some of the primary factors contributing to the variability.   
 

-
10,000
20,000

30,000
40,000

50,000
60,000

70,000
80,000

90,000
100,000

High School District A  30,203  23,327  17,118  16,825  17,048  22,301  21,655  36,170  47,664  71,485 

High School District B  7,278  18,347  41,634  12,037  9,347  8,271  10,567  11,042  12,601  12,387 

High School District C  16,935  49,759  67,033  76,559  80,837  83,587  75,516  80,747  99,013  77,782 

1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06

 

Year-to-year variability of district special 
education expenditures 

 
Source: ("Opihlnntprd3\access\Division\School Budgeting and Accounting\Maefairs", QryPRDexpenditures dated 1/16/07) 
This graph represents federal and non-federal SPED expenditures excluding tuition payments for district residents placed in another 
district, Miscellaneous Program Fund, Impact Aid Fund, and Major Capital Outlay.   
 
The three high school districts were selected for only purposes of illustration, but are 
good examples of year-to-year variability in expenditures that some districts face when 
they try to budget for special education.  FY '06 enrollment in the three districts were all 
below 60 students. 
 
House Bill 2 includes language that allows the Office of Public Instruction to distribute 
funds from the appropriation for in-state treatment to public school districts for the 
purpose of providing for educational costs of children with significant behavioral or 
physical needs.  This fund can help to mitigate some of the cost variability.  However, in 
FY '07 the OPI received approximately $2.5 million in requests for approximately $.5 
million in available funds. 
 
In addition to year-to-year variability, significant differences exist between public school 
districts in the amount they spend on a per student basis.  Variations between districts 



 

 14  

in expenditures on a per special education student basis is often caused by differences 
between districts in the number of students with significant needs, differences in salary 
due to level of education and experience of staff, and differences in programs and 
service delivery models. 
 

-

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

Special Education Expenditures per Student FY' 2006

Expenditures per student with disabilities  7,857  6,193  4,321  7,603  4,995 

Expenditures per enrolled student  1,310  590  1,341  1,173  654 

High School District 
A

High School District 
B

High School District 
C

High School District 
D

High School District 
E

 
Source: ("Opihlnntprd3\access\Division\School Budgeting and Accounting\Maefairs", QryPRDexpenditures, QryPRDenrollment 
dated 1/16/07) 
 
This graph represents federal and non-federal SPED expenditures excluding tuition payments for district residents placed in another 
district per Special Education Enrolled Student and Per Enrolled Student, Miscellaneous Program Fund, Impact Aid Fund, and Major 
Capital Outlay.   
 
The first three districts are the same districts used as an example of the variability in 
special education expenditures from year-to-year.  Districts D and E are large districts 
with enrollments in excess of 3,500 students.  The above districts were selected for 
purposes of illustration of the variability between districts and are not typical.  However, 
the selected districts serve as a good example of the difference between districts in their 
special education expenditures per special education student and the difference 
between districts in their special education expenditures per enrolled student.  For 
example, in FY '06 District A spent approximately $3,500 more than District C per 
special education student.  On a per enrolled student basis, District C spent 
approximately $750 more than District B.   
 
Medicaid 

 
The Office of Public Instruction (OPI) and the Health Resources Division of the 
Department of Public Health and Human Services (DPHHS) have collaborated on a 
number of projects that have increased reimbursement to districts for certain special 
education costs.  Additionally, the collaboration has led to an expansion in school-based 
Mental Health Services.  The collaborative efforts were intended to expand Medicaid 
support of certain medical services provided by schools (e.g., school psychology, 
transportation, personal care attendants), establish a program for administrative 
claiming, and reinstate a school-based mental health program known as 
Comprehensive School and Community Treatment (CSCT). 
 
 



 

 15  

Revenue to school districts has increased markedly as a result of the multiagency 
collaborative.  Districts only receive the federal share of the Medicaid payment. A 
certification of match process is used to pay the state share of the Medicaid payment.  
Therefore, all increases in revenue to districts have come without any increase in cost 
to the state's general fund. 

FY '06 Medicaid Payments to Schools

70%

17%

13%

Comprehensive School
and Community
Treatment
Fee for Service

Administrative Claiming

 
Source: DPHHS, Health Resources Division 
 
There are three programs that provide Medicaid reimbursement to districts: 1)  Fee-for-
service provides reimbursement for special education related services such as speech 
therapy, occupational therapy, and physical therapy (FY '06 payments to districts totaled 
$1,951,279.85); 2)  Administrative claiming compensates school districts for some of the 
costs associated with administration of school-based health services such as helping to 
identify and assist families in accessing Medicaid Services and seeking appropriate 
providers and care (FY '06 payments to districts totaled $1,450,510); and  3)  CSCT 
services (FY '06 payments to districts totaled $8,159,292).  (Source for data on payments: 
DPHHS, Health Resources Division) 
 
While fee-for-service and administrative claiming generally provided reimbursement for 
services already being provided by districts, the CSCT program was an expansion of 
services.  The expansion re-established a school-based mental health program to help 
schools meet the growing need of serving children with serious emotional disturbance. 
The CSCT is a comprehensive planned course of treatment provided by Community 
Mental Health Centers in school and community settings. The CSCT services include: 
behavioral intervention, crisis intervention, treatment plan coordination, aftercare 
coordination and individual, group, and family therapy.  Individualized treatment plans 
tailored to the needs of each student are developed by licensed mental health 
professionals in coordination with school staff.   
 
Serious behavioral problems can significantly interfere with a student's education and 
the education of others.  Community Mental Health Centers working in close 
cooperation with public school districts increase the likelihood that education and mental 
health programs are better coordinated.  Because mental health professionals are 
present throughout the school day, they are available to intervene and redirect 
inappropriate behaviors and to teach appropriate behaviors and social skills at each 
opportunity.  This "real-time" intervention in the "natural setting" promises to have a 



 

 16  

major impact on improving the effectiveness of children's mental health services and the 
quality of the educational environment for all children. 
 
In FY '06 1,448 children received CSCT services from 114 teams of therapists located 
in approximately 106 schools.  (Source for data: DPHHS, Health Resources Division) 
 
Nearly all Medicaid reimbursements to districts for CSCT services are directly paid 
under contract to Community Mental Health Centers. Districts spend their Medicaid 
reimbursement from administrative claiming and fee-for-service on a wide variety of 
educational services.   
 

Expenditures of Medicaid Reimbursements
District F
FY 2006

Total Expenditures: $7,358.29

$6,748.44

$609.85 Special Ed Teacher
Salary & Benefits
Special Ed Instructional
Materials

 

Expenditures of Medicaid Reimbursements
District G
FY 2006

Total Expenditures: $9,031.35

$7,500.00

$1,370.70
$112.00

$48.65

Library - Purchased
Services
Library Supplies

Instructional Salaries

Instructional Supplies

 
Source: MAEFAIRS Expenditure Data 
 
Medicaid payments are reimbursement for services already provided.  District F and 
District G were selected for purposes of illustration of the variability between districts in 
how they spend their Medicaid revenue and are not necessarily typical of other districts.   
In District F, all Medicaid revenue was spent on providing special education services in 
the form of salaries and instructional materials.  In District G, all Medicaid revenue was 
spent on general education.  The flexibility in how Medicaid money is spent allows 



 

 17  

districts to choose whether the funds are used to reduce special education expenditures 
from the districts general fund or used to purchase general education services or 
materials to partially compensate for "local district" general fund expenditures for special 
education. 
 
 
 
 



 

 18  

Part 3 - Accountability 
 
Montana’s State Performance Plan  
 
Montana’s State Performance Plan (SPP) evaluates the state’s efforts to implement the 
requirements and purposes of Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
(IDEA) and describes how the state will improve outcomes for students with disabilities. 
It is the foundation of the state’s special education accountability system. There are 20 
performance indicators established by the U. S. Department of Education that the SPP 
addresses, along with a six-year timeline (FFY 2005 through FFY 2010) of measurable 
and rigorous targets and improvement activities for each indicator. New indicators are 
addressed in future terms. Through stakeholder involvement, Montana has set rigorous 
and statistically sound standards for its targets in the SPP.  The SPP was submitted to 
the U.S. Secretary of Education on December 1, 2005.  In 2006, the SPP was revised to 
include required information for those indicators described as new by the Office of 
Special Education Programs (OSEP). To view the SPP in its entirety, go to: 
http://www.opi.mt.gov/pdf/speced/SPPFINALDec12005.pdf   
 
The OPI submitted its revised State Performance Plan and the Annual Performance 
Report (APR) in February 2007. The Annual Performance Report for state fiscal year 
2006 addresses the progress the state has made in meeting its SPP targets for 12 of 
the required 20 performance indicators.  The SPP and APR can be found on the OPI 
Web page at: http://www.opi.mt.gov/PDF/SpecED/SPPFFY2005_10.pdf and 
http://www.opi.mt.gov/PDF/SpecED/07APRSAPR.pdf. 
 
At this time, Montana does not have an electronic state student information system 
(SIS) which collects student demographic data in such a manner to ensure the data 
collection process is valid and reliable. However, the OPI is in the process of working 
with a vendor in the development of a student information system, data warehouse and 
special education records and information management system (SERIMS). It is 
anticipated that this system will be fully operational in the 2008-2009 school year. When 
in place, the system will allow the OPI to collect student-level data, thereby increasing 
the reliability, consistency, and validity of longitudinal analysis. The OPI will review 
performance data with the Special Education Advisory Panel to determine if there is 
need to re-establish a baseline for those performance indicators that rely on data for 
establishing targets, if appropriate.  The name for the new student information system is 
Achievement in Montana (AIM). 
 
Following is a brief summary of revisions and updates to each of the 20 federal 
indicators based on a revised SPP and APR that were submitted in February 2007.  
 
Indicator 1: Percent of youth with IEPs graduating from high school with a regular 
diploma compared to percent of all youth in the state graduating with a regular diploma. 
 
Currently, Montana conducts two separate graduate data collections - one specifically 
for students with disabilities and the other is a non-disaggregated count of all students.  
Montana has adopted the National Center for Education Statistics cohort method as a 

http://www.opi.mt.gov/pdf/speced/SPPFINALDec12005.pdf
http://www.opi.mt.gov/PDF/SpecED/SPPFFY2005_10.pdf
http://www.opi.mt.gov/PDF/SpecED/07APRSAPR.pdf


 

 19  

practical way to calculate a completion rate. The calculation uses four years of graduate 
and dropout data to calculate the rate. 
 
The SPP has been amended to add 2004-05 graduation data as the baseline data.  
This data was not available when the SPP was originally submitted.  The table below 
shows trendline data including the 2004-05 baseline data.   
 
Montana Graduation Rate Comparison by School Year 

School Year

Graduate 
Count for 
General 
Education1

Completion 
Rates for 
General 
Education

Graduate Cnt 
for Special 
Education2

Completion 
Rates for 
Special 
Education

2001-2002 10554 84.1% 765 73.5%
2002-2003 10657 84.7% 769 71.5%
2003-2004 10500 84.2% 811 69.9%
2004-2005 10335 85.9% 944 74.0%

1General education graduate counts are reported on October 1st annually through the 
OPI Annual Data Collection.  This count includes students with disabilities and can not 
be disaggregated.
2Special education graduate counts are reported on June 30th annually as part of the 
end of year special education data collection.

 
The data indicates a steady decline of approximately 1.7 percent per year in the 
graduation rate of students with disabilities with a significant spike at the end of the 
fourth year. Although the FFY 2004 data suggest an increase in the graduation rate of 
students with disabilities, the trend-line data suggests that 2004-2005 data is more likely 
to be an anomaly and Montana will face a significant challenge in turning the trend 
around and showing continuous improvement. Therefore, stakeholders have indicated 
that it is reasonable to expect that, for the near term, a downward trend should be 
expected and caution be used when using 2004-05 data as baseline because this is 
very likely a one-year spike and, therefore, an anomaly.  This is not unlikely in a state 
with a small student population.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Montana Performance Target Status for 2005-06 School Year 

School Year

Graduate 
Count for 
Special 
Education

Completion 
Rates for 
Special 
Education

Confidence 
Interval - 

High

Confidence 
Interval - 

Low

Spp 
Performance 

Target for 
FFY 2005

State 
Performance 

Status
2005-2006 871 70.2% 73.2% 67.1% 69.1% Met Target  
 
For the 2005-06 school year, the completion rate for students with disabilities is 70.2 
percent and the established performance target is 69.1 percent.  Given a sample size of 
a minimum N of 10, the state has met its performance target of 69.1 percent, within a 95 
percent confidence interval.  
 
In accordance with recommendations from the Special Education Advisory Panel, 
performance targets were modified based on analysis of the 2004-05 data.  No 
revisions were made to improvement activities. 
 
Indicator 2:  Percent of youth with IEPs dropping out of high school compared to the 
percent of all youth in the state dropping out of high school. 



 

 20  

 
Currently, Montana conducts two separate dropout data collections. One collection is for 
students with disabilities and the other data collection is for all students (general 
education) and includes students with disabilities. The following describes both data 
collection processes, definitions applied to determine dropouts, and formulas for 
calculating dropout rates. 
 
The SPP has been amended to add 2004-05 dropout data as the baseline data.  This 
data was not available when the SPP was originally submitted.  The table below shows 
trend-line data including the 2004-05 baseline data.   
 
Montana Dropout Rate Comparison by School Year  

School Year

General 
Education 
Dropout Count, 
Grades 7-121

General 
Education 
Enrollment, 
Grades 7-122

General 
Education 
Dropout Rate3

Special 
Education 
Dropout 
Count, Ages 
14-214

Special 
Education 
Child Count, 
Ages 14-215

Special 
Education 
Dropout 
Rate6

2001-2002 2022 73797 2.7% 321 6159 5.2%
2002-2003 1872 73536 2.5% 325 6294 5.2%
2003-2004 1737 72736 2.4% 332 6341 5.2%
2004-2005 1665 72249 2.3% 455 6484 7.0%

5Special Education Child Count includes students with disabilities, ages 14-21, as reported on the December 1st 
child count.
6Special Education dropout rate formula: Total number of special education dropouts divided by the number of 
students reported on the December 1st child count, ages 14-21.

1General Education Dropout Count, grades 7-12, includes student with disabilities and can not be disaggregated.  The count is 
taken on October 1st annually as part of OPI's Annual Data Collection.
2General Education Enrollment includes all students enrolled, grades 7-12.  This includes students with disabilities 
and can not be disaggregated.  Enrollment is reported on October 1st each year.
3General Education dropout rate formula: Total number of general education dropouts divided by the number of 
students enrolled in grades 7-12.
4Special Education Dropout Count, ages 14-21, are reported on June 30th annually as part of OPI's Special 
Education Exiting Data Collection.

 

Trend-line data suggests the special education dropout rate was relatively stable for a 
three-year period then had a significant spike in 2004-2005. It is strongly felt that the 
spike shown in 2004-2005 is an anomaly. Extensive analysis was conducted to 
determine what could be the cause. It was noted that there was a 14 percent increase in 
the overall exiting count between 2003-2004 and 2004-2005. In a state such as 
Montana, with a relatively small population of students with disabilities, there is a high 
probability of significant variations in the data from year to year. 
 
The dropout rates for the general student population have remained consistent over the 
last five years, while the dropout rates for students with disabilities indicate a sharp 
increase for 2004-05 school year, then dropping back to a rate consistent with previous 
years.  A change in existing categories for reporting students with disabilities exiting 
special education suggests that this may be the cause of the increase in the number of 
students with disabilities reported as dropping out for the 2004-05 school year. 
 
 



 

 21  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Montana's Performance Target Status for FFY 2005 

School Year

Dropout Cnt for 
Special 
Education

Dropout Rates 
for Special 
Education

Confidence 
Interval - High

Confidence 
Interval - Low

Spp 
Performance 

Target

State 
Performance 

Status
20

Given a sample size of a minimum N of 10, the state has met its performance target, 
whithin a 95 percent confidence interval for the 2005-06 school year.   

05-2006 383 5.9% 8.8% 4.0% 5.8% Met Target  
 

 
In accordance with recommendations from the Special Education Advisory Panel, 
performance targets were modified based on analysis of the 2004-05 data.  No 
revisions were made to improvement activities. 
 
 
Indicator 3:  Participation and performance of children with disabilities on statewide 
assessments. 
 
This indicator requires the state to provide the percent of districts meeting the state’s 
Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP) objectives for progress for disability subgroups.  It also 
requires that participation rates and proficiency rates are addressed for all children with 
IEPs. 
 
The state’s method of calculating AYP includes the use of a minimum number (N) of 40 
(to accommodate the high proportion of small school districts) and multiple other 
measures such as the quality of a district's Five-Year Comprehensive Plan.  This is 
known as the All Schools Accountability Process (ASAP) and involves the use of 
multiple weighted factors in the calculation.  It is likely that once Montana is able to track 
students through the AIM, consideration will be given to implementing a "growth model" 
for NCLB of accountability.  A "growth model" uses longitudinal measures of each 
student's academic progress.   
 
For the 2005-2006 school year, Montana received approval for its revised accountability 
process including the calculation methodology for determining districts and schools 
meeting AYP and the addition of grades 3, 5, 6, and 7 to its statewide assessment.  
These revisions included establishing new cut points for determinations of Novice, 
Nearing Proficient, Proficient, and Advanced.  Additionally, the revisions included 
establishing new thresholds for the Annual Measurable Objective (AMO) used in 
determining AYP for schools in the calculated process and the small schools process.  
Due to the revisions of Montana’s Accountability process, it is necessary to establish a 
new baseline and targets for this indicator.  Revised baseline data is below. 
 
 
 
 
 

Districts Meeting AYP for Disability Subgroup for the 2005-2006 School Year 

# %
D
Di

 

istricts with a disability subgroup meeting Montana's minimum N size 53
stricts meeting Montana's AYP objectives for progress for students with IEPs 21 39.6%

AYP Objectives

Overall (across 
Content Areas)



 

 22  

 Participation Rates of Students with IEPs in Montana Statewide Assessments for All Grades Assessed 
 for the 2005-2006 School Year 

# % # % # %
(a) Number in grades assessed 9753 9753 19506
(b) Regular assessment (CRT) with no accommodations 3284 33.7% 3193 32.7%
(c) Regular assessment (CRT) with accommodations1 5738 58.8% 5838 59.9%
(d) Alternate assessment against grade level achievement standards2 0 0.0% 0 0.0%
(e) Alternate assessment (CRT-Alt) against alternate achievement standards 625 6.4% 626 6.4%

Overall rate of participation in statewide assessment for students with IEPs 9647 98.9% 9657 99.0% 19304 99.0%

Participation
Math

3Overall Participation Rates is equal to the number of student tests scored proficient or aboe in Math and Reading divided by the total number of tests taken in Math and 
Reading. 

2Montana does not use an alternate assessment scored against grade level achievement standards at this time.

Overall (across 
Content Areas)3

Source: Montana Statewide Assessment data and ADC Enrollment data.
1Regular assessment with accommodations include all students who paticipated with accommodations (both standard and nonstandard).

Reading

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Proficiency of Students with IEPs on Montana Statewide Assessments for All Grades Assessed 

for the 2005-2006 School Year 

# % # % # %
(a) Number in grades assessed 9753 9753 19506
(b) Proficient or above in regular assessment (CRT) with no accommodations 1091 11.2% 1670 17.1%
(c) Proficient or above in regular assessment (CRT) with accommodations1 975 10.0% 1640 16.8%
(d) Proficient or above in alternate assessment against grade level standards2 0 0.0% 0 0.0%
(e) Proficient or above in alternate assessment (CRT-Alt)against alternate achievement standards 390 4.0% 478 4.9%

Overall rate of proficiency or above for students with IEPs 2456 25.2% 3788 38.8% 6244 32.0%

3Overall Performance Rates is equal to the number of student tests scored proficient or aboe in Math and Reading divided by the total number of tests taken in Math and 
Reading. 

Overall (across 
Content Areas)3

Source: Montana Statewide Assessment data and ADC Enrollment data.
1Regular assessment with accommodations include all students who paticipated with accommodations (both standard and nonstandard).
2Montana does not use an alternate assessment scored against grade level achievement standards at this time.

Reading
Proficiency

Math

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Beginning with the 2006-07 school year, the targets for schools meeting AYP objectives 
and proficiency rates of students with disabilities in Montana's statewide assessments 
have been revised using 2005-06 school year data as the baseline.  Because of the 
recalibration of cut scores and the need to establish new thresholds for calculating the 
AMO, trend-line data cannot be relied on to establish targets for ensuing years.  In the 
absence of trend-line data, the assumption for AYP is that for the first two years, the 
percent of districts that have a disability subgroup that meets a minimum N of 40 
meeting the state’s AYP objectives will remain the same as the baseline.  For the next 
three years, we anticipate that intervention strategies addressing this performance 
indicator will begin producing results and we will begin to see improved performance.  
The assumption for Indicator proficiency rates is that for the first three years, the 
percentage of students tested to be proficient or above will remain the same as the 
baseline data.  For the next three years, we anticipate that intervention strategies 
addressing this performance indicator will produce results and we anticipate improved 
performance.   
 
Participation rates for students with disabilities are still aligned with the established 
performance targets and no revisions were made.   
 
Indicator 4:  Rates of suspension and expulsion. 
 



 

 23  

This indicator requires the state to provide the percent of school districts that are 
identified as having a significant discrepancy in the rates of suspensions and expulsions 
of children with disabilities for greater than 10 days in a school year.  A new component 
of this indicator requires the state to provide the same data by race and ethnicity. 
 
Long-term suspension or expulsion is defined as a suspension or expulsion that results 
in the removal of a student, out of school, for greater than 10 school days or a student 
with multiple short-term out-of-school suspensions or expulsions (10 school days or 
less) that sum to greater than 10 school days during the school year.   
 
The table below provides a new data component of this indicator as required.  It 
presents a comparison of long-term suspension and expulsion rates by race/ethnicity 
categories between students with disabilities and nondisabled students for the 2005-
2006 school year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Long-Term Suspension and Expulsion Rates by Race/Ethnicity for the 2005-2006 School Year 

Race/Ethnicity

Number of 
Special 

Education 
Students with 

Long-term 
Suspension or 

Expulsion1

Special 
Education 
Long-term 

Suspension or 
Expulsion 

Rates

Number of 
Regular Education 

Students with 
Long-term 

Suspension or 
Expulsion2

Regular Education 
Long-term 

Suspension and 
Expulsion Rates

 
American Indian/Alaskan Native 49 1.9% 159 1.0%

sian or Pacific Islander 0 0.0% 1 0.1%
lack or African American 1 0.5% 3 0.2%
spanic or Latino 3 0.6% 8 0.2%
hite, Non-Hispanic 42 0.3% 201 0.2%

Count of students with disabilities who qualify for services under IDEA, with multiple short-term suspensions or 
xpulsions (10 days or less) that sum to greater than 10 days during the school year or suspended or expelled once 
or greater than 10 days during the school year.

Count of nondisabled students with multiple short-term suspensions or expulsions (10 days or less) that sum to 
reater than 10 days during the school year or suspended or expelled once for greater than 10 days during the school 
ar.

 
A
B

 Hi

 
W

 
1

 
 

e
f
2

 
 
g
ye  
 
The long-term suspension/expulsion counts for both special education and regular 
education for LEAs in Montana are extremely small and this is particularly so for 
racial/ethnic and disability subgroups, especially in small rural schools. Therefore, there 
is often too small of a sample size to obtain precise and reliable results.  Recognizing 
the problem with validity of small sample sizes, the OPI will use multiple methods in its 
determination of significant discrepancy in long-term suspension/expulsion rates for 
students with disabilities by racial/ethnic categories.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Montana's Performance Target Status for FFY 2005 

School Year
Number 
of LEAs

Number of 
LEAs 

reporting 
long-term 

suspensions 
and/or 

expulsions

Number of LEAs 
reporting long-

term suspension 
and/or expulsions 
for students with 

disabilities

Percent of LEAs 
reporting long-term 
suspension and/or 

expulsions for students 
with disabilities

Percent of LEAs 
identified with 

significant 
discrepancy

Spp 
Performance 

Target

State 
Performance 

Status

05-2006 436 104 48 11.0% 0% 0.0% Met Target20



 

 24  

 
For FFY 2005, 0 percent of the LEAs were identified as having significant discrepancy 
in the long-term rates of suspensions and expulsions for students with disabilities when 
compared to the long-term suspension and expulsion rates of nondisabled students.  
Given a sample size of a minimum N of 10, the state has met its performance target of 0 
percent, within a 95 percent confidence interval. 
 
Indicator 5:  Percent of children with IEPs, aged 6 through 21, in less restrictive and 
more restrictive educational environments. 
 
This indicator addresses students with disabilities who receive services in three different 
settings:   
• those removed from the regular class less than 21 percent of the day;  
• those removed for greater than 60 percent of the day; and  
• those served in public or private separate schools, residential placements, or 

homebound or hospital placements. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Montana's Educational Placement Trend Data for Students with Disabilities, ages 6-21 

Educational Environment of Students with Disabilities, ages 6-21 
 Trend Data

0.0%
10.0%
20.0%
30.0%
40.0%
50.0%
60.0%

Pe
rc

en
t o

f S
tu

de
nt

s

Outside Regular Class <21% 56.2% 55.3% 54.6% 51.8% 50.9%

Outside Regular Class >60% 9.9% 10.4% 11.0% 11.4% 11.2%

Combined Separate Facilities 1.3% 1.4% 1.4% 1.3% 1.5%

2001-2002 2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-2006

 
Trend data indicate a 1.3 percent average annual decrease over the last four years in 
the percentage of students removed from regular class less than 21 percent of the day, 
and a .3 percent average annual increase over the last four years in the percentage of 
students educated outside the regular classroom for more than 60 percent of the day.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Montana's Performance Target Status for FFY 2005 

Spp Indicator 
Nu

 
 

mber Education Environment

Special 
Education 

Educational 
Placement 

Count

Special 
Education 

Educational 
Placement 

Percent

Confidence 
Interval - 

Upper Limit

Confidence 
Interval - 

Lower Limit

Spp 
Performance 

Target

State 
Performance 

Status
Indicator 5A Removed from Reg Class < 21% of day 8785 50.9% 52.0% 49.9% 50.0% Met Target
Indicator 5B Removed from Reg Class >60% of day 1928 11.2% 12.7% 9.8% 12.0% Met Target
Indicator 5C Combined Separate Facilities 266 1.5% 3.9% 0.6% 1.8% Met Target  

The data presented in the table above is used to assess the state’s progress in 
meetings its performance target for FFY 2005.  The state set a target, based on a 
minimum N of 10, of 50 percent of students with disabilities removed from regular class 



 

 25  

less than 21 percent of the day, 12 percent of students with disabilities removed from 
regular class for more than 60 percent of the day, and 1.8 percent of students with 
disabilities served in public or private separate facilities, within a 95 percent confidence 
interval.  The state met its targets in all areas. 
 
Indicator 6:  Percent of preschool children with IEPs who received special education 
and related services in settings with typically developing peers. 
 
Parents of preschool-age children with disabilities face widely differing choices when 
selecting special education settings, often driven by location and suitability. Not all 
communities offer the same array of choices, especially in rural areas. Few, if any, 
public school districts offer general education preschool, but all offer FAPE.   
 
Early Childhood Special Education settings are most likely settings for children, ages 3 
and 4, while Early Childhood settings are more likely for 5 year olds.  This difference is 
due to the availability of Kindergarten for 5 year olds in contrast to the absence of 
regular education alternatives for younger children. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Montana’s Educational Placement Trend Data for Students with Disabilities, Ages 3-5 

Educational Placement of Students with Disabilities, Ages 3-5
 Trend Data

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

Home 0.7% 0.9% 0.9% 0.3% 0.4%

PT Early Childhood, PT Early
Childhood Sped Setting

19.6% 22.7% 17.7% 22.8% 25.7%

Early Childhood Setting 37.9% 34.2% 39.1% 31.7% 26.3%

Total % for all three settings
combined

58.2% 57.8% 57.7% 54.8% 52.4%

2001-2002 2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-2006

 
Trend data show that the percentage of students with disabilities, ages 3-5, who receive 
special education and related services in settings with typically developing peers (e.g., 
early childhood settings, home, and part-time early childhood/part-time early childhood 
special education settings) has declined slightly.  The overall percentage of the three 
setting categories varied between years, but ranged from 58.2 percent in FFY 2001 to 
52.4 percent in FFY 2005.  Further, year-to-year variations in the percentages of 
students with disabilities, ages 3-5, are evident within each setting.   
 
 
 
 



 

 26  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Montana's Performance Target Status for 2005-06 School Year 

Spp Indicator 
Number Education Environment1

Special 
Education 

Educational 
Placement 

Count

Special Education 
Educational 

Placement Percent

Confidence 
Interval - 

Upper Limit

Confidence 
Interval - 

Lower Limit

Spp 
Performance 

Target

State 
Performance 

Status
Indicator 6 Education Environment, Ages 3-5 1008 52.4% 55.4% 49.3% 54.8% Met Target
1Education Environment includes the following settings with typically developing peers:  Early Childhood Setting, Part-time Early Childhood/Part-time Early Childhood Special 
Education Setting and home.  

The data indicate 52.4 percent of students with disabilities, ages 3-5, received special 
education and related services in settings with typically developing peers for the 2005-
2006 school year.  In comparing the established performance target to the range of 
values in the confidence interval, the performance target falls within the upper and lower 
limits of the confidence interval.  We can conclude that there is no statistical difference 
between the special education educational placement percent and the established 
performance target.  Therefore, given a sample size of a minimum N of 10, the state 
has met its performance target for this indicator, within a 95 percent confidence interval. 
 
 
Indicator 7 (New Indicator): Percent of preschool children with IEPs who demonstrate 
improved positive social-emotional skills, acquisition and use of knowledge and skills 
(including early language/communication and early literacy), and use of appropriate 
behaviors to meet their needs. 
 
The OPI implemented data collection and reporting procedures during the spring of 
2006 to collect entry data for this performance indicator.  Entry data were collected for 
the first time on all children, ages 3, 4, 5 and some 6 year olds, between March 1 and 
December 1, 2006.  Baseline data, targets and improvement activities will be reported in 
the February 2008 Annual Performance Report and included as revisions to the State 
Performance Plan. 
 

Numbers of preschool-age children with disabilities reporting performance data 
March 1 – November 30, 2006 

 
Initial 
Number 
of IEPs

Annual 
Number 
of IEPs

Total 
Number 
of IEPs

No Data 
Reported

Response 
Rate

Three Year-Olds 301 23 324 36 90%
Four Year-Olds 319 256 575 94 86%
Five Year-Olds 281 440 721 191 79%
Total 901 719 1620 321 83%  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 27  

Percentages of children with an INITIAL IEP rated as functioning comparable to same-age peers or not 
(N=901). 

N % N %

525 58.3% 376 41.7%

101 11.2% 800 88.8%

576 63.9% 325 36.1%

Positive social-emotional skills including  social 
relationships
Acquisition and use of knowledge and skills, 
including early language/ communication and 
early literacy
Use of appropriate behaviors to meet individual 
needs

% comparable to 
same-aged peers

% NOT comparable 
to same-aged peers

 

 

Percentages of children with an ANNUAL IEP rated as having reached or maintained a level comparable to 
same-aged peers, improved, but not to a level comparable to same-aged peers, or not improved.  (N=719). 

 % Reached or 
maintained a level 

comparable to same-
aged peers  

% Improved, but 
not to a level 

comparable to 
same-aged peers  

% who did not 
improve  

 N  %  N  %  N  %  

Positive social-emotional 
skills including social 
relationships  

276  38.4%  418  58.1%  25  3.5% 

Acquisition and use of 
knowledge and skills, 
including early 
language/ 
communication and 
early literacy  

51  7.1%  642  89.3%  26  3.6% 

Use of appropriate 
behaviors to meet 
individual needs  

320  44.5%  375  52.2%  24  3.3% 

 

The OPI will continue to work with the contractor for SERIMS to ensure the system 
includes all data reporting requirements. 
 
Indicator 8 (New Indicator):  Percent of parents with a child receiving special 
education services who report that schools facilitated parent involvement as a means of 
improving services and results for children with disabilities. 
 
In September 2006, for those LEAs who were to be monitored in the 2006-07 school 
year, all parents of students ages 3-21 receiving special education services during the 



 

 28  

2005-06 school year were asked to complete and then mail a survey to Mountain Plains 
Regional Resource Center (the agency the OPI contracted with to conduct the survey).  
Parents were assured of anonymity.  A total of 3,355 surveys were mailed and 540 were 
returned for a response rate of 16.1 percent. 
 
Because of the low response rate, a random sample of 50 parents were called and 
asked five key questions from the Parent Survey.  An analysis of the phone responses 
suggests that the results based on the mail respondents are representative of all 
parents of students with disabilities.   
 
The data were extensively analyzed and, with recommendations from the Montana 
Special Education Advisory Panel, it was determined that a 60 percent cut score 
(representative of a parent who, on average, agrees with each item) represented the 
most appropriate cut score.   
 
The first year of data collection indicates that the majority of parents believe that the 
LEAs facilitate their involvement; 65.5 percent of parents state that their child’s school 
facilitated their involvement.  
 
Performance targets were established based on the recommendation and advice of the 
Special Education Advisory Panel.  The Panel felt strongly that it would be difficult to 
move parents from a category of agree to "strongly agree." 
  
Indicator 9 (New Indicator):  Percent of districts with disproportionate representation of 
racial and ethnic groups in special education and related services that is the result of 
inappropriate identification. 
 
Disproportionate representation is defined as an identification rate that is a statistically 
significant difference and exists as a result of inappropriate identification practices or 
procedures, and/or lack of early intervening services and cannot be attributed to unique 
circumstances (e.g., private school, group home, specialized facilities) which are an 
underlying factor of the representation. 
 
Beginning with the school year 2005-06, the OPI implemented a procedure of multiple 
measures to determine whether a school district has disproportionate representation 
based on inappropriate identification will be reported in the revised State Performance 
Plan.
 
Indicator 10 (New Indicator):  Percent of districts with disproportionate representation 
of racial and ethnic groups in specific disability categories that is the result of 
inappropriate identification. 
 
When a school district is identified as having disproportionate representation through a 
statistical screening process, the procedures for further investigation and analysis are 
the same as reported under Indicator 9.  Baseline data was collected during 2005-06 
school year and will be reported in the revised State performance Plan.  
 



 

 29  

Indicator 11 (New Indicator):  Percent of children with parental consent to evaluate, 
who were evaluated and eligibility determined within 60 days (or state-established 
timeline). 
 
Baseline data was collected during the 2005-06 monitoring cycle and will be reported in 
the revised State Performance Plan. 
  
Improvement Activities: The OPI will incorporate these new data collection components 
in its AIM system and continue to provide technical assistance for school personnel on 
timeline requirements. 
  
Indicator 12:  Percent of children referred by Part C, prior to age 3, who are found 
eligible for Part B, and who have an IEP developed and implemented by their third 
birthdays. 
 
The OPI addresses Early Childhood Transition through an interagency agreement with 
the Part C lead agency.  Training and technical assistance are provided at the local 
level by both the OPI and the Part C lead agency.  Both agencies work with Parents, 
Let’s Unite for Kids (PLUK) to inform and support parents and families experiencing 
transitions from one program to the other.  Additional oversight is accomplished through 
complaints and due process management system and OPI compliance monitoring. 
 
Number and Percentage of Infants and Toddlers Moving out of Part C 
 

Number and Percentage of Infants and Toddlers 
July 1, 2003 - June 30, 2004 

Part B 
Eligible 

Not Eligible 
for Part B, 

Exit to Other 
Programs 

Not Eligible 
for Part B, 

Exit With No 
Referrals 

Part B 
Eligibility Not 
Determined 

TOTAL 

180 43 12 52 287 
63% 15% 4% 18%  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Of the 287 children referred by Part C to the Part B program, 63 percent were 
determined to be eligible for Part B services.  Review of data for 2003-04 and 2004-05 
reveals no issues arising in this area through compliance monitoring or the 
complaint/due process management system. 
 
Improvement Activities: The OPI is incorporating  this new data element into the AIM 
system; continues to provide technical assistance and training for school personnel on 
effective child find practices and transitions from Part C to Part B; and continues to work 
with the Part C lead agency to collect necessary data. 
 
Indicator 13 (New Indicator):  Percent of youth, aged 16 and above, with an IEP that 
includes coordinated, measurable, annual IEP goals and transition services that will 
reasonably enable the student to meet post-secondary goals. 
 



 

 30  

The OPI collected baseline data as a part of its compliance monitoring procedures 
during the 2005-2006 school year and the data will be reported in the revised State 
Performance Plan. 
 
Improvement Activities: The OPI  continues to provide technical assistance and 
professional development to school districts on transition requirements and IEP 
development; work with other state agencies to engage their involvement in transition 
planning; work with institutions of higher education to ensure students receive 
information and training related to transition requirements; and ensure this data 
requirement is incorporated into the AIM system. 
 
Indicator 14 (New Indicator):  Percent of youth who had IEPs, are no longer in 
secondary school and who have been competitively employed, enrolled in some type of 
post-secondary school, or both, within one year of leaving high school. 
 
Post-school outcome data will be directly reported by school districts through tracking 
youth who had IEPs and are no longer in secondary school in spring of 2007. Baseline 
will be reported in the State Performance Plan in February 2008.  
 
Improvement Activities: The OPI is revising its current electronic exiting data collection 
to include post-school outcomes data and ensure this data requirement is incorporated 
in the AIM system.  
 
Indicator 15:  General supervision system (including monitoring, complaints, hearings, 
etc.) identifies and corrects noncompliance as soon as possible, but in no case later 
than one year from identification. 
 
The OPI has a comprehensive system of general supervision that includes a review of 
IDEA Part B applicants’ policies and procedures to ensure consistency with IDEA Part B 
requirements.  It also includes procedures for formal complaints and due process 
hearings and mediation, an Early Assistance Program (EAP) to resolve issues prior to 
their becoming formal complaints or going to due process.  It provides a compliance 
monitoring process based on a five-year cycle, and a focused intervention system 
based on selected performance indicators. 
 
Each component of the general supervision system includes procedures for tracking 
data to ensure requirements and timelines are addressed in a timely manner.  Analysis 
of data from the 2005-2006 school year shows that all timelines for due process 
hearings, mediations and formal complaints have been met 100 percent of the time.   
 
Monitoring data for 2005-2006 is currently being analyzed and will be reported in the 
Annual Performance Report. 
 
Improvement Activities: The OPI will revise its Focused Intervention activities to better 
align with State Performance Plan indicators; continue to ensure timelines are 
addressed; review the status of corrective action plans on a monthly basis; provide 
follow-up to school districts to ensure they are moving toward completion of corrective 
action plans; and implement sanctions, as appropriate, to ensure school districts 
complete required corrective action plans. 



 

 31  

 
Indicator 16:  Percent of signed written complaints with reports issued that were 
resolved within 60-day timeline or a timeline extended for exceptional circumstances 
with respect to a particular complaint. 
 
Only four complaints were received in 2005-2006. Of these, two were withdrawn. The 
remaining two met the required timeline. 
 
Improvement Activities: The OPI will continue to work at reducing the number of 
complaints by providing timely technical assistance to districts and using part-time 
seasonal personnel to serve in a technical assistance capacity to resolve conflicts. 
 
Indicator 17:  Percent of fully adjudicated due process hearing requests that were fully 
adjudicated within the 45-day timeline or a timeline that is properly extended by the 
hearing officer at the request of either party. 
 
In 2005-2006 there were no fully adjudicated due process hearing requests. 
 
Improvement Activities: The OPI will continue to provide annual training to hearing 
officers and track timelines for due process hearings to ensure compliance. 
 
Indicator 18 (New Indicator):  Percent of hearing requests that went to resolution 
sessions that were resolved through resolution session settlement agreements. 
 
Districts must convene the 30-day resolution session in a timely manner following the 
IDEA statute requirements and, if requested, the OPI may provide technical assistance.  
Baseline data was collected during the 2005-2006 school year and will be reported in 
the State Performance Plan.  
 
Improvement Activities: The OPI will continue to respond to any requests from school 
districts for assistance in establishing procedures for successful resolution sessions. 
 
Indicator 19:  Percent of mediations held that resulted in mediation agreements. 
 
Established procedures allow either party to request mediation. For mediation to 
proceed, both parties must agree to the mediation. No mediation requests were 
received by the OPI in the 2005-06 school year. 
 
Improvement Activities: The OPI will continue to provide training to school districts, 
parents and parent advocacy groups about the mediation process and make trained 
mediators available to schools and parents at no cost when requested. 
 
Indicator 20:  State-reported data (618 and State Performance Plan and Annual 
Performance Report) are timely and accurate.  
 
The OPI has consistently met designated timelines 100 percent of the time over the 
past five years.   Data is reviewed and validation checks performed to ensure accuracy 
of the submitted data.  



 

 32  

 
Improvement Activities: The OPI will continue to provide technical assistance for data 
submission and ensure that the AIM system includes all required data elements. 







Montana School for the Deaf and the Blind 
Board of Public Education Committee Agenda 

July 13, 2006 Meeting - DRAFT 
 
 
Item        Presenter   Time 
 
1. MSDB Annual Report    Gettel                  10 min 
        
2. Human Resources      Gettel    3 min 
    - Personnel actions 
    - Update on negotiations with MEA-MFT  
       and UFCW 

 
3.  Professional Development    Gettel    3 min 
    - Orientation plans for 2007-08  
 
5. 2007 Legislative Session    Gettel    3 min 

   - Review of actions taken 
         

6.  MSDB Foundation     Informational  
- Update of activities 
 

7. Conferences, Meetings and Contacts   Informational  
     
8. Finance and Facilities     Sykes               3 min 
    - Update on year end finances 
       and maintenance projects  

 
9. School Calendar of Events     Informational 
 
10.  Student News      Informational     

- Summer Programs 
 
11. Public Comment for Non Agenda Items   
 
 
 















































 
 

ARM 10.57.801 
 
 

In the law (20-4-110 MCA), the Board of Public Education may issue a letter of 

reprimand or may suspend or revoke a teacher for breaking a contract in violation of the 

same.  This breach is referred to as “substantial and material non-performance of the 

employment contract.”   

 

Pursuant to 10.57.801 of the Board’s rules, a certified staff member commits a violation 

of law if, after signing a binding contract of employment with a Montana school district, 

the certified staff member substantially and materially breaches such contract without 

good cause.  “Good cause” shall be determined by the Board on a case-by-case basis.  

The rule gives examples of good cause which include:  (a) substantial hardship to the 

certified staff members family due to a change in employment of the spouse of the 

certified staff member that necessitates a move; (b) illness of a family member of the 

certified staff member that necessitates a move for purposes of providing for, caring for, 

or tending to the ill family member; (c) intolerable working conditions judged on the 

same basis as constructive discharge under Montana law. 

 
 


	Agenda
	Budget
	Minutes
	May 2007 Minutes
	June 2007 Minutes


	Correspondence
	Executive Secretary Report
	CSPAC Report
	BPE's Strategic Planning Update
	GED Annual Report
	Statistical Worksheet
	Demographic Statistical Report

	Assessment
	Special Education Executive Summary
	Special Education Report July 2007

	Report of Surrender of Educator Licenses
	No Child Left Behind Report
	MSDB Draft Committee Agenda
	Accreditation Update
	Memo from Al McMilin

	Alternative to Standards Request
	Memo from Al McMilin

	PEPPS-Salish Kootenai College
	State Review Salish Kootenai College

	Academic Denial of License
	Teacher Licensure



